
 
 

OCTOBER 18, 2017 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

3:30 P.M. Closed Session; 4:30 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Sam Abed 

 DEPUTY MAYOR John Masson 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Ed Gallo 
  Michael Morasco 

 CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 

 CITY CLERK Diane Halverson 

 CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   

 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



 

October 18, 2017 
3:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 

is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 
prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 

Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 
instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp  

Employee Organization: Escondido Firefighters' Association 

b. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp  
Employee Organization: Escondido Police Officers' Association 

c. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp  
Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 

d. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp  
Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: Supervisory (SUP) 

Bargaining Unit 
e. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp  

Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: 
Administrative/Clerical/Engineering (ACE) Bargaining Unit 

II. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

a. Case Name:   Quintero v. City of Escondido 
Case No:   15-CV-2638-BTM(BLM) 

  



III. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 
a. Property:  1600 West Ninth Avenue, APN 232-542-13  

(Windsor Gardens Apartments) 
City Negotiator: Jay Petrek, Assistant City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Prospective Purchasers 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

October 18, 2017 
4:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION:  
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   

 

FLAG SALUTE   
 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 
 

 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 

refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting.   



CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 

Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 
or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY/RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled 

 

CONSENT – RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 

Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN (CCP) FOR HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS FUNDS 
(HOME), COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS (CDBG), EMERGENCY 

SOLUTIONS GRANT FUNDS (ESG), AND THE ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING (AFH) - 
Request the City Council solicit and consider citizen input on the Citizen Participation Plan; review and 

approve the Citizen Participation Plan for HOME, CDBG, ESG, and AFH. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-128 

 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

5. FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 - 
Request the City Council receive and file the annual financial status report for Fiscal Year 2016/17; 

approve the budget adjustment that recommends using the year-end General Fund surplus of 

$1,900,000 to fund specific department funding requests totaling $445,000, and to transfer the 
remaining balance of $1,455,000 to the Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve; and adopt Resolution No. 

2017-138 to formally commit these funds to the Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve as required by the 
City's Fund Balance Policy.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-138 

  



6. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE OPERATION OF THE ESCONDIDO PUBLIC 
LIBRARY - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the Professional 
Services Agreement for the operation of the Escondido Public Library with Library Systems & Services, 

LLC. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Manager's Office: Jeffrey Epp and City Attorney's 
Office: Michael McGuinness) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-139 

 

FUTURE AGENDA 

7. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 

Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 

announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

 WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 
are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

ADJOURNMENT 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

October 25 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting Council Chambers 

November 1 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting Council Chambers 

November 8 - - No Meeting - 

November 15 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting Council Chambers 



TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 

are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 

• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  
• In the Library (239 S. Kalmia) during regular business hours and  

• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 

or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 
Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  

They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 

www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 
home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 

of the month at 3:30 in Closed Session and 4:30 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the CDC, Escondido Joint Powers 

Financing Authority and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


 

 

Agenda Item No.:  1 
Date: October 18, 2017 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A F F I D A V I T S 
 

OF 
 

I T E M  
 

P O S T I N G 



 

 

Agenda Item No.:  2 
Date: October 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A P P R O V A L   
 

OF 
 

W A R R A N T    R E G I S T E R 



 

 

 

Agenda Item No.:  3 
Date: October 18, 2017 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A P P R O V A L 
 

O F 
 

M I N U T E S 
 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Public Hearing Item No. 4 October 18, 2017  File No. 0870-11, 0871-10, 0873-01 

 

SUBJECT: Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) for Home Investment Partnerships Funds 
(HOME), Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG), Emergency 
Solutions Grant funds (ESG), and the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH)  

 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department 
Housing and Neighborhood Services Division 

    

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council solicit and consider citizen input on the Citizen Participation Plan.  
It is also requested that the City Council review and adopt Resolution No. 2017-128 approving the 
Citizen Participation Plan for HOME, CDBG, ESG, and AFH.  
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

The City of Escondido receives annual federal entitlements from the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) for housing, community development, and homeless activities.   
 
The Citizen Participation Plan will provide guidance for resident participation of these funds.  
Administrative fund will be used for required outreach.  The Citizen Participation Plan will not impact 
the general fund.   
 
CORRELATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN:  
 
This item relates to the City Council's Action Plan regarding Community Improvement.    
 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
On March 10, 2010, the City Council held a public hearing and approved the FY 2010-2015 Five-Year 
Consolidated Plan, FY 2010-2011 Action Plan, and Citizen Participation Plan for HOME funds for 
affordable housing activities and CDBG funds for community development programs and projects.    
 
On April 22, 2015, the City Council held a public hearing and approved the FY 2015-2019 Five-Year 
Consolidated Plan and amended the Consolidated Plan on July 20, 2017, to include the ESG funds.  
The Plan established priorities for the use of federal funds (including HOME, CDBG, and ESG) over 
the five-year period, ending June 30, 2020, to benefit low-income residents and neighborhoods in the 
City of Escondido.  
 



Citizen Participation Plan  
October 18, 2017 
Page 2 

On March 8, 2017, the City Council held a public hearing and reaffirmed the community development 
priorities adopted in the FY 2015-2019 Amended Five-Year Consolidated Plan and approved an 
allocation process for FY 2017-2018 CDBG funds.  
 
On June 7, 2017, the City Council held a public hearing and approved the FY 2017-2018 Action Plan 
for HOME funds for affordable housing activities, CDBG funds for community development programs 
and projects, and ESG funds for homeless priorities. The approved Action Plan included the 
maximum allowable allocations for administration for the HOME program (10 percent), CDBG 
program (20 percent), and ESG program (7.5 percent).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City receives an annual entitlement of HOME funds, CDBG funds, and ESG funds from the HUD 
for housing, community development, and homeless activities. The entitlement supports the City's 
2015-2019 Consolidated Plan which identifies overall housing, community development, and 
homeless goals for a five-year period. The City must submit an Annual Action Plan to outline 
spending and activities for the corresponding program years, and have a CPP to set forth the City's 
policy and procedures for encouraging Citizen Participation.  
 
The primary goal of the CPP is to solicit views and recommendations from the members of the 
community, organizations and other interested parties and to incorporate the views and 
recommendations in the decision making process.  The CPP encourages participation of residents, 
especially low-and-moderate income persons, in the development and preparation of required plans.  
 
As a recipient of CDBG funds, the City is required to take steps to affirmatively further fair housing 
within its jurisdiction as part of the obligation it assumes when it accepts these funds. Part of the 
requirement is to complete and submit an Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) to the HUD every five 
years.  Under the new rule, jurisdictions are required to amend their CPP to include consultation and 
community participation in the analysis, development, and assessment of fair housing. Staff is 
recommending amending the City's current CPP to comply with the new HUD provisions.  
 
On July 20, 2017, a draft CPP (Attachment A) was distributed to the Neighborhood Group Leaders at 
the quarterly Neighborhood Leadership Forum. On September 6, 2017, a draft CPP was noticed in 
the North County edition of the San Diego Union Tribune on the City's website, and was available at 
the Escondido Public Library, at City Hall, and at Housing and Neighborhood Services. As of the 
publishing of this report, no comments have been received.  
 

 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development  Karen Youel, Hous. & Neigh. Svs. Manager 

10/10/2017 4:44p.m.      10/11/2017 8:22 a.m. 
 



Citizen Participation Plan  
October 18, 2017 
Page 3 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Attachment A – Citizen Participation Plan 
2. Resolution No. 2017-128 
3. Resolution No. 2017-128 - Exhibit A 



Attachment A 

City of Escondido 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 

 
 
Citizen participation is a priority for the City of Escondido. The City of Escondido receives an 
annual entitlement of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment 
Partnership (HOME), and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds from the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for housing and community development activities to 
assist low-income persons. In accordance with the Grant, the City must create a 5-Year 
Consolidated Plan (Consolidated Plan) that addresses affordable housing and community 
development needs, submit an Annual Action Plan (Annual Plan) to outline spending and activities 
for the corresponding program years, and provide a Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER) to evaluate the City’s accomplishments and use of CDBG, HOME 
and ESG funds as well conduct an Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) every five years.  
 
The following Citizen Participate Plan (CPP) meets HUD standards for: 
 

• Involvement of community members in the public participation process, including public 
hearings and public comment periods 

• Opportunities for involvement of affected persons and other concerned citizens in the 
planning process 

• Transparency of the planning process and freedom of access to the draft Plan 
• Public’s submission of comments and the standards for the grantee’s response 
• Continuity of participation throughout all stages of the Plan’s development. 

 
Objectives  
 
The primary goal of the CPP is to solicit views and recommendations from members of the 
community, organizations, and other interested parties and to incorporate the views and 
recommendations in the decision making process. To accomplish this goal, the CPP mandates 
that the City will:  
 

• Encourage participation from residents in the development and preparation of the 
Consolidated Plan, Annual Plan, AFH, substantial amendments to these plans, and the 
CAPER.  

 
• Encourage the involvement by low and moderate income persons, particularly those who 

reside in CDBG-eligible neighborhoods, areas designated for revitalization, areas 
designated as a slum and blighted, people with disabilities, racial and ethnic minorities, 
Non-English speaking and limited English proficient (LEP) persons, and residents of public 
and assisted housing developments in the development of the Consolidated Plan and 
AFH.  

 
• Encourage participation from Continuums of Care, businesses, developers, nonprofit 

organizations, philanthropic organizations, community-based and faith based 
organizations, resident advisory boards, resident councils, and resident management 
corporations during the development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan and 
AFH.  

 
• Provide residents reasonable and timely access to information, meetings, and records.  



 
Citizen Participation Plan for HUD Funded Activities 7.19.17 | CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

• Provide residents the opportunity to review, offer input and feedback regarding the use of 
CDBG, HOME, and ESG funds and the AFH, and comment on the CAPER.  

 
• Provide assistance for non-English-speaking and LEP persons upon advance request, 

provided such services are available. 
 

• Use comprehensive techniques to encourage and measure public participation and review 
program performance.  

 
• Reasonable accommodations will be provided for those with disabilities upon advance 

request.  
 
Reviews/Recommendations 
 
Staff reviews proposals and make recommendations to the City Council concerning funding for 
social services, affordable housing projects, homeless initiatives, and capital improvement 
projects. City Council meetings are open to the public and available for viewing on the City 
website. City Council agendas are posted 72 hours prior to a meeting and available on the City’s 
website and at City Hall, 201 N. Broadway.   
 
During the Development of the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, and Assessments of Fair 
Housing: 
 

• The City will make a concerted effort to notify residents, social service providers, business 
groups, nonprofit organizations, community and faith based organizations, and community 
boards and other interested organizations of the development of the Consolidated, Annual 
Plans, and AFH through mailings, including electronic mail, online postings, and notices 
in the newspaper.  

 
• The City will issue a Notice of Funding Availability/Request for Proposals inviting 

proposals for CDBG, HOME and ESG activities. Upon request, the City will provide 
technical assistance to groups representing low-moderate income persons to develop 
proposals for eligible activities and comment on the AFH.  

 
• The City will make available any HUD-provided data and other supplemental information 

the grantee plans to incorporate into its AFH at the start of the public participation process 
(or as soon as feasible after).  

 
• Prior to adoption of the Plan(s), the City will make available the estimated amount of 

CDBG, HOME, and ESG funding that it expects to receive, the activities that may be 
undertaken, the estimated amount of funds that will be used to benefit low-moderate 
income persons, and any activities that may result in displacement.  

 
• The City will publish a summary of the proposed Plan(s) and/or AFH in the newspaper 

and have it available on the City’s website for a period of ten days prior to a public meeting. 
The summary will describe the contents and purpose of the Plan(s) and/or AFH and 
include a list of the locations where they may be examined. The Plan(s) and/or AFH will 
be available for review at Escondido City Hall, on the City’s website, and at the Escondido 
Public Library. The City will provide a reasonable number of free copies to citizens and 
groups upon request.  

 



 
Citizen Participation Plan for HUD Funded Activities 7.19.17 | CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Public Hearings  
 

• The City will conduct at least two public hearings each year to obtain residents’ views 
regarding housing and community development needs, proposed allocation of CDBG and 
ESG funds, strategies and actions taken to affirmatively further fair housing, and approve 
program/funding activities. The City will conduct at least one public hearing each year 
regarding the proposed allocation of HOME funds. HOME funds will be conditionally 
committed to an affordable housing development only after a public hearing to discuss the 
project. 

 
• The City will conduct at least one public hearing during the development of the AFH prior 

to publishing the AFH for public comment. The public hearing must be held prior to 
formulating the Consolidated Plan.  

 
• The City will conduct at least one public hearing during the development of the 

Consolidated Plan prior to publishing the Consolidated Plan for public comment.  
 

• The City will receive and consider comments concerning the Plan(s) and/or AFH for period 
of not less than 30 days. All comments received, in writing or orally at a public meeting, 
will be considered in preparing the final Plan(s) and/or AFH. A summary of the comments 
or views, including those not accepted and the reasons, shall be attached to the final 
Plan(s) and/or AFH.  

 
• Public notices, excluding the CAPER, will be published at least ten days prior to a hearing. 

Notices will include the date, time, location, and summary of the proposed action to help 
facilitate informed comments. Notices will be published in the newspaper and announced 
on the City’s website.  

 
Amendments to the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, and Assessments of Fair Housing  
 
The City will amend its approved Plan(s) whenever it makes one of the following decisions:  
 

• To carry out an activity not previously described in the Annual Plan using funds covered 
by the Consolidated Plan, including program income.  

• To substantially amend the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries of an activity.  
• To substantially amend the allocation priorities or the method of distributing funds.  

 
A substantial amendment is defined as the following:  
 

• An addition, modification, or elimination of a Consolidated Plan goal;  
• An addition of a new activity not previously identified in the Annual Plan; or  
• A change that affects the funding level of more than $25,000 for projects budgeted at   

$100,000 or less, or greater than 25 percent of projects budgeted at more than $100,000 
Substantial amendments must be authorized by the City Council and will be available on the City’s 
website and through public notices in the newspaper. Minor changes and/or corrections may be 
made, so long as the changes do not constitute a substantial amendment. Minor changes, 
including but not limited to modifications of goal outcome indicators, shall not be considered a 
substantial amendment and do not require public review or a public hearing.  
 

• The City will receive and consider comments concerning substantial amendments and/or 
AFH revisions for period of not less than 30 days. All comments received, in writing or 



 
Citizen Participation Plan for HUD Funded Activities 7.19.17 | CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

orally at a public meeting, will be considered in preparing the final Plan(s) and/or AFH. A 
summary of the comments or views, including those not accepted and the reasons, shall 
be attached to the final Plan(s) and/or AFH. 

 
• Public notices will be published at least ten days prior to the hearing. Notices will include 

the date, time, location, and summary of the proposed action to help facilitate informed 
comments.  

 
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Reports (CAPERs)  
 
The City will prepare an annual CAPER to evaluate the progress of the Consolidated Plan and to 
review accomplishments for the previous program year.  
 

• A comment period of not less than 15-days will be provided. All comments received, in 
writing or orally, will be included in the final submission to HUD.  

 
Access to Information and Records 
  

• Any citizen, organization, or other interested party may submit written requests for 
information regarding the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, AFH, and CAPER, including 
the City’s use of funds under the CDBG, HOME, and ESG programs and the benefit to 
low-moderate income residents during the preceding five years.  

 
• This Citizen Participation Plan, the Consolidated Plan, the current Annual Plan, the current 

AFH, the current CAPER, and any substantial amendments to these plans will be available 
for public review at City Hall, 201 N. Broadway and on the City’s website.  

 
Comment and Complaint Process  
 
The City will consider any comments from citizens received in writing or orally at public hearings 
in preparing this Citizen Participation Plan, the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, CAPERs, AFH, 
and/or substantial amendments to these plans. A summary of all comments will be attached and 
submitted to HUD.  
 
The City will respond to written complaints received relating to the Consolidated Plan, Annual 
Plans, AFH, CAPERs, and/or substantial amendments. Written complaints must describe the 
objection and provide contact information of the complainant. The City will respond to complaints 
within 15 working days of receiving the written complaint, acknowledging the letter and identifying 
a plan of action, if necessary. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-128 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING THE AMENDED CITIZEN 
PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR PROGRAMS 
FUNDED BY THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido is a recipient of various grant assistance 

programs offered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”), 

including the Community Development Block Grant funds, the Home Investment 

Partnerships funds, and Emergency Solutions Grant funds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Part 91 of Title 24 of the Code of Regulations, HUD 

requires the City to adopt a Citizen Participation Plan that sets forth the City’s policies 

and procedures in the encouragement of citizen participation with respect to HUD 

funds; and 

WHEREAS, it is the City’s desire to amend the Citizen Participation Plan to 

incorporate new required language that encourages citizen participation in the 

Assessment of Fair Housing; and 

WHEREAS, the City in accordance with its Citizen Participation Plan, held a 

noticed public hearing on October 18, 2017, to consider a draft of the amended Citizen 

Participation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City has made available the draft Citizen Participation Plan for 

public review for a period of 30 days; and 

Agenda Item No.: 4 

Date: October 18, 2017



WHERAS, the City Council having considered all public comments, now wishes 

to approve the Citizen Participation Plan attached as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution and 

incorporated by this reference.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council has heard and considered all public comments and

testimony presented. 



Resolution No. 2017-128 
Exhibit “A”  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 
      

City of Escondido 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 

 
Citizen participation is a priority for the City of Escondido. The City of Escondido receives an 
annual entitlement of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment 
Partnership (HOME), and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds from the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for housing and community development activities to 
assist low-income persons. In accordance with the Grant, the City must create a 5-Year 
Consolidated Plan (Consolidated Plan) that addresses affordable housing and community 
development needs, submit an Annual Action Plan (Annual Plan) to outline spending and activities 
for the corresponding program years, and provide a Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER) to evaluate the City’s accomplishments and use of CDBG, HOME 
and ESG funds as well conduct an Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) every five years.  
 
The following Citizen Participate Plan (CPP) meets HUD standards for: 
 

• Involvement of community members in the public participation process, including public 
hearings and public comment periods 

• Opportunities for involvement of affected persons and other concerned citizens in the 
planning process 

• Transparency of the planning process and freedom of access to the draft Plan 
• Public’s submission of comments and the standards for the grantee’s response 
• Continuity of participation throughout all stages of the Plan’s development. 

 
Objectives  
The primary goal of the CPP is to solicit views and recommendations from members of the 
community, organizations, and other interested parties and to incorporate the views and 
recommendations in the decision making process. To accomplish this goal, the CPP mandates 
that the City will:  
 

• Encourage participation from residents in the development and preparation of the 
Consolidated Plan, Annual Plan, AFH, substantial amendments to these plans, and the 
CAPER.  

 
• Encourage the involvement by low and moderate income persons, particularly those who 

reside in CDBG-eligible neighborhoods, areas designated for revitalization, areas 
designated as a slum and blighted, people with disabilities, racial and ethnic minorities, 
Non-English speaking and limited English proficient (LEP) persons, and residents of public 
and assisted housing developments in the development of the Consolidated Plan and 
AFH.  

 
• Encourage participation from Continuums of Care, businesses, developers, nonprofit 

organizations, philanthropic organizations, community-based and faith based 
organizations, resident advisory boards, resident councils, and resident management 
corporations during the development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan and 
AFH.  

 
• Provide residents reasonable and timely access to information, meetings, and records.  

 



Resolution No. 2017-128 
Exhibit “A”  

Page 2 of 4 

 

 
      

• Provide residents the opportunity to review, offer input and feedback regarding the use of 
CDBG, HOME, and ESG funds and the AFH, and comment on the CAPER.  

 
• Provide assistance for non-English-speaking and LEP persons upon advance request, 

provided such services are available. 
 

• Use comprehensive techniques to encourage and measure public participation and review 
program performance.  

 
• Reasonable accommodations will be provided for those with disabilities upon advance 

request.  
 
Reviews/Recommendations 
 
Staff reviews proposals and make recommendations to the City Council concerning funding for 
social services, affordable housing projects, homeless initiatives, and capital improvement 
projects. City Council meetings are open to the public and available for viewing on the City 
website. City Council agendas are posted 72 hours prior to a meeting and available on the City’s 
website and at City Hall, 201 N. Broadway.   
 
During the Development of the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, and Assessments of Fair 
Housing: 
 

• The City will make a concerted effort to notify residents, social service providers, business 
groups, nonprofit organizations, community and faith based organizations, and community 
boards and other interested organizations of the development of the Consolidated, Annual 
Plans, and AFH through mailings, including electronic mail, online postings, and notices 
in the newspaper.  

 
• The City will issue a Notice of Funding Availability/Request for Proposals inviting 

proposals for CDBG, HOME and ESG activities. Upon request, the City will provide 
technical assistance to groups representing low-moderate income persons to develop 
proposals for eligible activities and comment on the AFH.  

 
• The City will make available any HUD-provided data and other supplemental information 

the grantee plans to incorporate into its AFH at the start of the public participation process 
(or as soon as feasible after).  

 
• Prior to adoption of the Plan(s), the City will make available the estimated amount of 

CDBG, HOME, and ESG funding that it expects to receive, the activities that may be 
undertaken, the estimated amount of funds that will be used to benefit low-moderate 
income persons, and any activities that may result in displacement.  

 
• The City will publish a summary of the proposed Plan(s) and/or AFH in the newspaper 

and have it available on the City’s website for a period of ten days prior to a public meeting. 
The summary will describe the contents and purpose of the Plan(s) and/or AFH and 
include a list of the locations where they may be examined. The Plan(s) and/or AFH will 
be available for review at Escondido City Hall, on the City’s website, and at the Escondido 
Public Library. The City will provide a reasonable number of free copies to citizens and 
groups upon request.  



Resolution No. 2017-128 
Exhibit “A”  

Page 3 of 4 

 

 
      

Public Hearings  
 

• The City will conduct at least two public hearings each year to obtain residents’ views 
regarding housing and community development needs, proposed allocation of CDBG and 
ESG funds, strategies and actions taken to affirmatively further fair housing, and approve 
program/funding activities. The City will conduct at least one public hearing each year 
regarding the proposed allocation of HOME funds. HOME funds will be conditionally 
committed to an affordable housing development only after a public hearing to discuss the 
project. 

 
• The City will conduct at least one public hearing during the development of the AFH prior 

to publishing the AFH for public comment. The public hearing must be held prior to 
formulating the Consolidated Plan.  

 
• The City will conduct at least one public hearing during the development of the 

Consolidated Plan prior to publishing the Consolidated Plan for public comment.  
 

• The City will receive and consider comments concerning the Plan(s) and/or AFH for period 
of not less than 30 days. All comments received, in writing or orally at a public meeting, 
will be considered in preparing the final Plan(s) and/or AFH. A summary of the comments 
or views, including those not accepted and the reasons, shall be attached to the final 
Plan(s) and/or AFH.  

 
• Public notices, excluding the CAPER, will be published at least ten days prior to a hearing. 

Notices will include the date, time, location, and summary of the proposed action to help 
facilitate informed comments. Notices will be published in the newspaper and announced 
on the City’s website.  

 
Amendments to the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, and Assessments of Fair Housing  
 
The City will amend its approved Plan(s) whenever it makes one of the following decisions:  
 

• To carry out an activity not previously described in the Annual Plan using funds covered 
by the Consolidated Plan, including program income.  

• To substantially amend the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries of an activity.  
• To substantially amend the allocation priorities or the method of distributing funds.  

 
A substantial amendment is defined as the following:  
 

• An addition, modification, or elimination of a Consolidated Plan goal;  
• An addition of a new activity not previously identified in the Annual Plan; or  
• A change that affects the funding level of more than $25,000 for projects budgeted at   

$100,000 or less, or greater than 25 percent of projects budgeted at more than $100,000 
Substantial amendments must be authorized by the City Council and will be available on the City’s 
website and through public notices in the newspaper. Minor changes and/or corrections may be 
made, so long as the changes do not constitute a substantial amendment. Minor changes, 
including but not limited to modifications of goal outcome indicators, shall not be considered a 
substantial amendment and do not require public review or a public hearing.  
 



Resolution No. 2017-128 
Exhibit “A”  

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
      

• The City will receive and consider comments concerning substantial amendments and/or 
AFH revisions for period of not less than 30 days. All comments received, in writing or 
orally at a public meeting, will be considered in preparing the final Plan(s) and/or AFH. A 
summary of the comments or views, including those not accepted and the reasons, shall 
be attached to the final Plan(s) and/or AFH. 

 
• Public notices will be published at least ten days prior to the hearing. Notices will include 

the date, time, location, and summary of the proposed action to help facilitate informed 
comments.  

 
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Reports (CAPERs)  
 
The City will prepare an annual CAPER to evaluate the progress of the Consolidated Plan and to 
review accomplishments for the previous program year.  
 

• A comment period of not less than 15-days will be provided. All comments received, in 
writing or orally, will be included in the final submission to HUD.  

 
Access to Information and Records 
  

• Any citizen, organization, or other interested party may submit written requests for 
information regarding the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, AFH, and CAPER, including 
the City’s use of funds under the CDBG, HOME, and ESG programs and the benefit to 
low-moderate income residents during the preceding five years.  

 
• This Citizen Participation Plan, the Consolidated Plan, the current Annual Plan, the current 

AFH, the current CAPER, and any substantial amendments to these plans will be available 
for public review at City Hall, 201 N. Broadway and on the City’s website.  

 
Comment and Complaint Process  
 
The City will consider any comments from citizens received in writing or orally at public hearings 
in preparing this Citizen Participation Plan, the Consolidated Plan, Annual Plans, CAPERs, AFH, 
and/or substantial amendments to these plans. A summary of all comments will be attached and 
submitted to HUD.  
 
The City will respond to written complaints received relating to the Consolidated Plan, Annual 
Plans, AFH, CAPERs, and/or substantial amendments. Written complaints must describe the 
objection and provide contact information of the complainant. The City will respond to complaints 
within 15 working days of receiving the written complaint, acknowledging the letter and identifying 
a plan of action, if necessary. 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Current Business No. 5   October 18, 2017    File No. 0430-30 

 

SUBJECT: Financial Status Report for Fiscal Year 2016/17 and Budget Adjustment for 
Fiscal Year 2016/17 

 

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council receive and file the annual financial status report for fiscal year 
2016/17 (Attachment 1) and approve the attached budget adjustment that recommends using the 
year-end General Fund surplus of $1,900,000 to fund specific department funding requests totaling 
$445,000, and to transfer the remaining balance of $1,455,000 to the Pension Rate Smoothing 
Reserve.  In addition, staff requests that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2017-138 to formally 
commit these funds to the Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve as required by the City’s Fund Balance 
Policy.  
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

This report provides the City Council with the financial status of selected funds of the City for fiscal 
year 2016/17.  The report provides an analysis of unaudited revenue and expenditure for fiscal year 
2016/17 in comparison to fiscal year 2015/16 for the General Fund, the Community Services Fund, 
the Reidy Creek Municipal Golf Course Fund and the Water and Wastewater Funds.  The financial 
highlights for each of these funds are summarized below.   
 
The City Council adopted a balanced annual operating budget for the General Fund in fiscal year 
2016/17 without the use of reserves.  Efficient operations and fiscal prudence resulted in the General 
Fund ending the year with operating expenditures under budget by $3.3 million. After offsetting the 
negative results of revenue coming in under budget by about $1 million the General Fund ended with 
surplus funds of $1.9 million.  Staff recommends this be used as follows: 
 

 Transfer $145,000 to cover the Reidy Creek Golf Course operating loss in fiscal year 2016/17 
and replace an irrigation filtration system at the golf course.   

 Transfer $300,000 to the Building Maintenance Fund to cover necessary but unanticipated 
maintenance costs in fiscal year 2016/17.   

 Transfer remaining funds of $1,455,000 to a Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve to provide 
economic relief during recessionary cycles and/or rate increases that are significantly above 
anticipated projected employee rate increases.  This Reserve will hold the funds until a Section 
115 Pension Trust has been established.   
 

The Community Services/Recreation Fiscal Year 2016/17 operating budget anticipated using 
reserves of $36,285.  Because revenues were lower than anticipated, they ended the year using 
reserves of $45,495, leaving an ending fund balance of $140,981. Community Services staff is 



Financial Status Report for Fiscal Year 2016/17 
October 18, 2017 
Page 2 

continuing to evaluate the City’s Recreation programs and activities for possible fee increases, 
marketing strategies, and cost-saving measures in order to balance current and future budgets.   
 
The Reidy Creek Golf Course ended the year with an operating loss of about $142,000.  The winter 
storms left extensive flooding on the back nine of the course which greatly contributed to this loss. In 
addition, the number of golfers nationwide is decreasing so JC Resorts, along with City staff, continue 
to look for ways to attract more golfers and keep costs down. A transfer of $145,000 is being 
requested to cover the operating loss and replace an irrigation filtration system at the golf course.  
 
The Water Fund ended fiscal year 2016/17 with net operating income of $6.7 million.  This amount 
was higher than the prior year by about $2.5 million due to an increase in water consumption from the 
removal of drought restrictions and a 5.5 percent rate increase in March 2016. This increased 
revenue was offset by operating expenditure increases from both salaries and purchased water.  
 
The Wastewater Fund ended fiscal year 2016/17 with net operating income of $11.4 million.  This 
amount was higher than the prior year by about $748,000.  This was due to increased operating 
revenue from sewer service charges and the San Diego treatment charge which both increased due 
to rate increases.  Operating expenditures remained fairly flat with only a slight decrease of 1 percent. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
On March 1, 2017, and May 10, 2017, the City Council received and approved quarterly financial 
reports for the second and third quarters of fiscal year 2016/17.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This year-end financial status report presents a financial update to the City Council concerning certain 
funds of the City and their year-end financial outcome. It continues to reflect outstanding efforts to 
maintain services while exercising fiscal prudence.  This report includes budgetary information for 
selected funds, along with actual revenues and expenditures for the year.  In addition, it provides 
Council a summary of each of these funds’ financial plan and whether the plan was achieved during 
the Year.  The City Council will be receiving the Escondido Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) in December, which is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Sheryl Bennett, Deputy City Manager, Admin. Svs.       Joan Ryan, Assistant Director of Finance 

10/11/2017 9:42 a.m.           10/11/2017 9:39 a.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Attachment 1 - Fourth Quarter Financial Report for June 30, 2017 
2. Budget Adjustment Request 
3. Resolution No. 2017-138 



 

 

 Fourth Quarter Financial Report as of June 30, 2017 

 

  

OVERVIEW  

This report summarizes the City’s overall financial position 

for the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017.  While 

the focus of this report is the General Fund, the financial 

status of the Community Services Fund, the Water and 

Wastewater Funds, and the Reidy Creek Municipal Golf 

Course are included.  This report is for internal use only.  The 

figures presented here are unaudited and have not been 

prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting principles (GAAP).   

The revenue projections and budget include adjustments 

for encumbrances, carryovers, and any other supplemental 

appropriations approved by the City Council as of June 30, 

2017.   

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund ended fiscal year 2016/17 with net 

sources over uses of about $1.9 million.  These results were 

achieved because actual operating expenditures were under 

budget by about $3.3 million, offsetting the negative results 

of actual revenue coming in under budget by about $1 

million. 

 

General Fund  

Comparison of Final Budget to Actuals 

As of June 30, 2017 

 FINAL  

BUDGET 

 

ACTUAL 

 

Total Revenue $92,492,012 $91,445,806 

Total Expenditures $94,146,723 $90,807,315 

Other Sources (Uses) Note 1 $1,122,826 $1,277,826 

Total Sources over (Uses) 

Note 2 
($531,885) $1,916,317 

Reserve Balance  $17,392,319 

 

Note 1:  Other Sources (Uses) include transfers in and 

advances from other funds less transfers out and 

advance repayments. 

Note 2:  Council approved the use of General Fund 

Reserves during the year-end report to Council on 

October 26, 2016. 

 

 

General Fund Revenue:  General Fund total revenue was up 

3.3% compared to the prior year or about $2.9 million if you 

exclude one-time revenue.  Actual revenue came in under 

budget by about $1 million, which was mainly due to sales 

tax projections. The City received one-time revenue from 

fire mutual aid of about $616,000 and $376,000 from the 

sale of city property.  Details of the General Fund revenue 

sources are outlined below.   

 

General Fund Revenue

Amended 

Budget

FY 2016/17 

Actual

FY 2015/16 

Actual

Sales Tax 37,218,000$    36,088,340$  35,580,717$   

Property Tax 24,307,000     24,346,068    23,249,072    

Other Taxes 12,176,000      12,360,789     11,499,609     

Intergovernmental 2,938,573       2,594,822      2,907,434      

Permits & Fees 1,097,000       1,222,686      934,455        

Fines & Forfeitures 1,402,000       1,191,723       1,347,167       

Charges for Services 8,957,994       8,860,510      8,342,948      

Investment & Property 3,779,710       3,788,945      3,711,349       

One-Time Revenue 615,735          991,923         3,191,393       

Total with One-Time Revenue 92,492,012      91,445,806     90,764,144    

Total excluding One Time 

Revenue 91,876,277$    90,453,883$  87,572,751$   

Sales Tax:  Sales Tax revenues were about $508,000 higher 

than the previous year, but were under budget by about     

$1 million.  This is because sales tax was projected to grow 

annually by 4% and actual growth was 1.4%.  Sales tax 

results per quarter in fiscal year 2016/17 saw growth of 

1.7%, 4.7%, 2.2%, and .1%, respectively.  The City economic 

segments that contributed to this increase were new auto 

sales and restaurants.   

 

Property Tax:  Property Tax revenues are up about 5% or 

about $1.1 million compared to the prior year.  This is 

because assessed value growth for Escondido in fiscal year 

2016/17 was up 5.3% compared to the prior year.   

 

Other Taxes:  Other Taxes are up about $861,000 compared 

to the prior year.  This increase is mainly from an increase in 

franchise fees, transient occupancy tax, property transfer 

tax, and business license fees.    

 

Intergovernmental:  Intergovernmental revenue includes 

the Rincon fire services agreement, state mandated costs 

claims and various grants and was down about $313,000 

compared to the prior year.  This was due to a timing 

 

 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
ATTACHMENT 1:  FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT 

June 30, 2017 



 

 

 Fourth Quarter Financial Report as of June 30, 2017 

 

difference in the receipt of funds from Ground Emergency 

Medical Transport and Rincon fire service fees.     

 

Fines and Forfeitures:  Fines and forfeitures are down about 

$155,000 compared to the prior year, with the majority of 

this decrease coming from decreased collection of vehicle 

code fines and parking citations.    

 

Charges for Services:  Charges for services have increased 

over the prior year by about $518,000.  This increase is 

mainly from paramedic transport fees, which is the result of 

a 5% increase in the number of transports and a fee increase 

that went into effect on July 1, 2016. 

 

General Fund Expenditures:  General Fund total 

expenditures are up 1% compared to the prior fiscal year or 

about $908,000 but were under budget by about $3.3 

million.  Lower than anticipated expenditures occurred for 

employee services due primarily to employee attrition. 

General Fund Expenditures

Amended 

Budget

FY 2016/17 

Actual

FY 2015/16 

Actual

General Government 6,322,085$    5,700,454$   5,828,914$     

Community Services 4,674,833       4,370,206      4,357,854       

Community Development 4,200,535       3,880,385     3,534,885      

Public Works 12,296,685     11,302,657     11,100,365      

Public Safety 63,396,400    62,982,291    62,535,313     

Other Expenditures 3,256,185       2,571,322      2,542,201       

Total 94,146,723$   90,807,315$  89,899,532$   
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND 

The Community Services Fund overall revenues are down 

about 5% compared to prior year’s revenues. There was a 

53% decrease in lease revenue. This is the result of 

anticipated terminations of cell tower leases, which resulted 

in approximately $298,000 less revenue than the prior year 

in rent. The After School Education & Safety grant revenue 

received was also under budget by $78,280, due to costs 

that were no longer eligible expenses for reimbursement 

under the grant. Overall expenditures were 1% less than the 

prior year and 3% under budget. The Community Services 

budget for FY 2016/17 was balanced by using $36,285 of 

fund balance.  Since revenues were lower than anticipated 

the Community Services fund used $45,495 of fund balance, 

which is $9,120 more than budgeted.  

Community Services Fund

Annual 

Budget

FY 16/17 

Actual

FY 15/16 

Actual

Revenues 3,294,385  3,164,634  3,311,509      

Expenditures 3,553,770  3,433,229  3,454,514     

Other Sources (Uses) 223,100      223,100      223,100         

Total Sources Over Uses (36,285)      (45,495)      80,095          
  

REIDY CREEK GOLF COURSE FUND 

The Reidy Creek Golf Course Fund ended the year with an 

operating loss of $141,726.  With the number of golfers 

nationwide decreasing annually JC Resorts is continually 

working on marketing techniques and ideas to improve 

revenues on an ongoing basis. Unfortunately, a majority of 

the courses loss of revenue was due to flooding that 

occurred on the back nine of the course during the 

significant rains we had this winter. A transfer of $145,000 is 

being requested to cover the year’s losses and replace an 

irrigation filtration system at the golf course.  

Reidy Creek Golf Course

Annual 

Budget

FY 16/17 

Actual

FY 15/16 

Actual

Revenues 664,395    521,803      545,664     

Expenditures 664,395    663,529      667,261      

Total Operating Loss (141,726)      (121,597)     

Other Sources (Uses) 131,000       167,000      

Equipment Purchase (8,812)          (35,085)      

Total Sources Over (Under) Uses (19,538)       10,318         

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Water Fund:  The Water Fund operating revenue increased 

by $3.8 million or 7.8% from the prior year.  The increase is 

due to an increase in water consumption due to removal of 

the drought restrictions and a 5.5% rate increase in March 

2016.  Operating expenses increased by $1.4 million or 3.2% 

compared to the prior year.  The increase primarily is due to 

negotiated staff increases and City water.  Operating income 

for the year was $6.7 million. 

Water Fund Annual Budget

FY 2016/17 

Actual

FY 2015/16 

Actual

Operating Revenues 55,175,000      52,936,039       49,105,084      

Operating Expenses (50,676,535)     (46,285,786)      (44,865,148)     

Operating Income 4,498,465        6,650,253         4,239,936       

Nonoperating Rev (Exp) (1,761,400)        374,239           707,800          

Transfer to Capital

   Projects and Debt Srvc (4,523,835)       (4,571,035)        (9,926,843)      

Total Sources over Uses (1,786,770)       2,453,457         (4,979,107)       
 

Wastewater Fund: Operating revenue was up $573,000 over 

the prior year: Sewer service charges increased $771,000 

due to a 6% rate increase in March 2016; $1.57 million 

increase in San Diego Treatment charges due to a rate 

increase of $600 per thousand kilo gallons; $1.13 million 

decrease in recycled water sales due lower irrigation needs 

because of heavier rainfall; and $631,000 decrease in other 

revenues due to less agency incentive revenue in FY 2017.  

Operating expenditures decreased by $176,000 (1%) due to: 

staffing increased $1.4 million due to negotiated increases; 

offset by decreases in professional fees of $923,000 and 



 

 

 Fourth Quarter Financial Report as of June 30, 2017 

 

other operating expenses of $1.1 million.  Operating income 

for the year was $11.4 million.   

 

Wastewater Fund Annual Budget

FY 2016/17  

Actual

FY 2015/16  

Actual

Operating Revenues 33,500,000    34,166,602    33,594,078    

Operating Expenses (23,836,550)  (22,768,299)   (22,944,190)   

Operating Income 9,663,450      11,398,303     10,649,888    

Nonoperating Rev (Exp) (1,610,340)      (968,311)         (954,330)        

Transfer to Capital

   Projects and Debt Srvc (9,923,135)     (10,143,133)    (24,220,472)   

Total Sources over Uses (1,870,025)      286,859         (14,524,914)    

FOR MORE INFORMATION 

This summary report is based on detailed information 

generated by the City’s finance department.  If you have any 

questions or would like additional information on this 

report, please contact the finance department at (760) 839-

4676 or visit www.escondido.org.   



Page 1 

ESCOkIDIDO 
City of 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

Date of Request: 10/18/2017 

Department: Finance 

Division: 

Project/Budget Manager: Joan Ryan x4338 

 

Name Extension 

Council Date (if applicable): 10/18/2017  
(attach copy of staff report) 

Project/Account Description Account Number Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease 

Transfer In-Reidy Creek 4999-553 145,000 

Transfer Out-General Fund 5999-001 145,000 

Other Capital Outlay 5209-553-130 3,000 

Transfer In-Building 
Maintenance 

4999-650 300,000 

Transfer Out-General Fund 5999-001 300,000 

PERS Rate Smoothing 
Reserve 

3033-001 1,455,000 

General Fund-Fund Balance 3050-001 1,900,000 

Explanation of Request: 

Use of 2016/17 General Fund year end surplus: Reidy Creek golf course operating loss, Building Maintenance 
unanticipated costs, increase PERS rate smoothing reserve. 

APPROVALS  

10/ 10/P- 
m9ntmcir, Date City Manager Date 

tO(3
10 In 
ate City Clerk Date 

Distribution (after approval): Original: Finance 
FM1105 (Rev.08/06) 

nce 

For Finance Use Only 

Log #  

Fiscal Year  
ear 

 Budget Balances 
 General Fund Accts 
 Revenue 
 Interfund Transfers 

Fund Balance 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-138 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
DIRECTING THE USE OF REMAINING 
FUNDS FROM FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 AND 
MODIFYING THE CITY’S FUND BALANCE 
POLICY 

WHEREAS, the close of Fiscal Year 2016/17 has produced a change in Fund 

Balance and the City Council must determine the use of these remaining funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) has 

issued its Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 

Definitions with the intent of improving financial reporting by providing fund balance 

categories that will be more easily understood; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido has previously adopted 

Resolution No. 2015-215(R), the Fund Balance Policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Fund Balance Policy provides that the City Council may commit 

funds for specific purposes by taking formal action and these committed amounts 

cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the 

specific use through the same formal action to establish the commitment; and 

WHEREAS, the Deputy City Manager of Administrative Services has 

recommended to the City Council that a portion of the Fiscal Year 2016/17 General 

Fund net income in the amount of $1,455,000 be “Committed” to a Pension Rate 

Smoothing Reserve; and  

Agenda Item No.: 5 

Date: October 18, 2017



Whereas, the City Council has determined that the Pension Rate Smoothing 

Reserve be established at $1,984,000; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the General Fund Reserve 

balance be established at $17,392,319; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council hereby establishes and approves the Committed 

balance of the General Fund Pension Rate Smoothing Reserve at $1,984,000 as of the 

date of this Resolution. 

3. That the City Council hereby establishes and approves the Committed 

balance of the General Fund Reserve at $17,392,319 as of the date of this Resolution. 

4. That the City Council hereby adopts the staff recommendation presented 

at the Council meeting of October 18, 2017.   

 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Current Business Item No. 6  October 18, 2017   File No. 0600-10, A-3232 

 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement for the Operation of the Escondido Public 
Library 

 

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office and City Attorney’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the Professional 
Services Agreement for the operation of the Escondido Public Library with Library Systems & 
Services, LLC (LS&S) and adopt Resolution No. 2017-139. 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

Staff members from the City’s Finance Department reviewed the City’s current cost to provide Library 
services and compared the City’s costs to the contract sums. A summary and detailed cost 
comparison have been on the City’s website as part of this process.  According to the comparison, 
the City will save approximately $400,000 for each year of the contract with LS&S in addition to 
recognizing additional hours the Library will be open to the public. 
 
The cost savings determined by the Finance Department are both firm and realistic.  It is possible that 
City costs will actually increase more than assumed in the City model and there may be additional 
savings related to overhead costs currently dedicated toward Library services.   
 
CORRELATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN:  
 
This item relates to the 2017-2018 City Council Action Plan regarding Fiscal Management and 
specifically, Strategy Item 7, evaluate opportunities for outsourcing city operations. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
On August 23, 2017, the City Council authorized the City Manager and City Attorney to both negotiate 
a contract with LS&S to provide day-to-day operational services at the Escondido Public Library, 
including provisions to expand the number of hours the Library is open to the public, and engage in 
good faith negotiations with all applicable bargaining units effected by an outsourcing of Library 
services to meet and confer on any decision to outsource and the effects of any outsourcing.  The 
City Manager and City Attorney were then directed to return with appropriate terms and conditions 
upon which the City Council may enter into a contract for the management of the Library and effect 
necessary layoffs of City library staff. 
 



Professional Services Agreement for the Operation of the Escondido Public Library 
October 18, 2017 
Page 2 

BACKGROUND: 
 
History of Outsourcing Effort. 

The City Manager, as part of his duties to the City Council, and mindful of substantial budget 
issues facing the City, has been undertaking a comprehensive review of all City operations to 
determine if there are new and improved methods of providing city services which satisfy the 
City Council’s efforts to run a clean, safe and efficient city.  From March through August 2017, 
the City Manager’s Office engaged in discussions with LS&S to understand the services they 
offer, vetted their competencies to perform as advertised, met with Library Board members and 
other volunteers to determine interest and concerns, and attended Library Board meetings to 
hear the community’s response and input.  The City’s Finance Department examined the 
potential budget savings from an agreement with LS&S to provide the same services as 
existing city employees assigned to the library. 

On August 23, 2017, the City Manager brought the matter of library outsourcing formally to 
council in open session for their consideration.  LS&S made a presentation and numerous 
citizens spoke on the subject during oral communications.  Council considered the advantages 
and disadvantages of such action and directed the City Manager and City Attorney to negotiate 
a contract with LS&S for their further consideration.  City staff were also directed to meet and 
confer with any necessary bargaining units over any decision to outsource library employee 
services. 

The Contract Negotiation and Public Comment Process. 

Since late August, the City Attorney and representatives and counsel for LS&S have 
negotiated over acceptable terms for a contract to provide professional library services at the 
Escondido Public Library. Critical to the City’s criteria for the contract were detailed service 
requirements and performance measurements allowing the City and Library Board members to 
track LS&S’ performance in implementing their contractual responsibilities.   

Once the contract terms were finalized, the entire draft contract was uploaded to the City’s 
website for public comment on October 4, 2017.  On the same day as the contract’s public 
release, it was also provided directly to the Library Board members for their comment.  As of 
the date of this Report, the City Attorney’s office has received a few questions from Library 
Board members, library staff, a member of the Escondido Library Foundation, and one 
question from the general public.      

The Proposed Contract. 

The draft contract is the version that best illustrates the extent to which the City and LS&S can 
agree on the terms of this engagement. That process involves the normal give-and-take of 
contract negotiations designed to achieve the best product identifying the rights and 



Professional Services Agreement for the Operation of the Escondido Public Library 
October 18, 2017 
Page 3 

obligations of the parties so that they each may achieve what is desired in the agreement.  The 
City Attorney’s goals during the negotiations were to ensure that LS&S’ duties and 
responsibilities were clearly identified, that objective performance measurements were in place 
to track whether LS&S was meeting its contractual responsibilities, that the library patron 
experience would be the same if not better with LS&S, and that the Library Board of Trustees 
plays an increased role in the overall process of Library management.  

The Proposed Contract is comprised of two main components:  a Professional Service 
Agreement and a detailed Scope of Services that must be performed by each party 
(Attachment A).  

Highlights of the contract include: 

• A requirement that LS&S develop and implement a written Strategic Plan in cooperation 
with City representatives, the Library Board and community stakeholders to assess:  

o The service needs of Escondido residents 

o A five year forecast of Library maintenance and growth 

o Library expansion plan and potential bond measure 

o Programming enhancements 

o Assessment of technological and library material needs  

• A detailed scope of services which identifies LS&S’s responsibilities and staffing. 

• LS&S must compile monthly, quarterly and annual reports of performance measured by 
at least the California State Library, Public Library Statistics for FY 2016-17 (the most 
recent statistics measuring library performance).  The contract also allows for further 
development of performance measurements. 

• If LS&S does not perform as required, the contract may be terminated.  Also, if funding 
becomes an issue in the future, the contract can be terminated at the end of the current 
Fiscal Year (FY) if a budget is not appropriated for the following FY. 

• The retention of current programming to the extent it is funded or has continued 
volunteer and/or community support. 

• The contract acknowledges the Library Board’s involvement in the administration of the 
Library by coordination, reporting and engagement.  LS&S agrees to comply with all 
state laws including the Municipal Libraries Act. 



Professional Services Agreement for the Operation of the Escondido Public Library 
October 18, 2017 
Page 4 

• LS&S must have a minimum of 22 Full Time Equivalent positions who are qualified to 
provide the services required under the contract. 

• LS&S’s obligations under the contract exist even if the current library employees are not 
hired and even if the library volunteers and community support groups refuse to remain 
engaged with the Library. 

• The contract includes an obligation to be open 60 hours per week, including Sunday. 

• All City property, equipment, collections, and art remain City property. 

Labor Negotiations. 

Since the City Council’s direction on August 23, 2017, and through October 12, 2017, City 
labor bargaining representatives and City Attorney staff have met seven (7) times with 
representatives of the ECEA bargaining unit.  LS&S representatives have also met with Library 
staff in both group meetings and individual library staff meetings.   

As part of the layoff process, the City will tender to the affected employees a Severance 
Agreement & Release of Claims form (“Release”).  The Release reflects that the City is 
offering to current library employees the following: a $2,600 lump sum severance payment, an 
employment reference indicating that the employee left City employment in good standing, 
and, if necessary, the City will support an employee’s claim for unemployment insurance 
related to this separation.  In exchange for those terms, the City has asked that the employees 
execute the Release which waives any claims against the City related to this layoff process.   

LS&S has offered to hire the current library employees at their existing salaries and 
classifications and with their existing titles.  In all other respects, and because LS&S is an 
independent contractor for the City, it shall have complete discretion as to the salaries and 
benefits for their employees.  

At this time, it is not known with any certainty how many current library employees will take 
positions with LS&S. 

Threatened Litigation. 

The City has received various threats of lawsuits related to the proposed contract.  Opponents 
of the contract have primarily relied on the contention that state law prohibits this contract 
because it undermines the Library Board of Trustees’ statutory right to manage the Library and 
the Board has advised the City that it opposes the outsourcing arrangement.  Specifically, 
opponents argue that California Education Code § 18910 posits in the Library Board of 
Trustees the sole and exclusive right and duty to manage a library and any act in contravention 
of that right is ultra vires (without authority).     



Professional Services Agreement for the Operation of the Escondido Public Library 
October 18, 2017 
Page 5 

The allegation that the City is without authority to enter into the contract is not well taken under 
state law and the actual terms of the contract. The relevant Education Code statutes refer 
generally to the right of a Library Board to “manage” the library.  The Code does not address 
the issue of day-to-day operations as provided for in this circumstance.  Further, the contract 
includes numerous references to Library Board oversight and involvement in strategic 
planning, policy and guideline development, program selection, report review and comment, 
collection development policy, and selection of the Librarian.   

If an action is filed in court related to the execution of the Agreement, and the court rejects the 
claims, the contract may be fully implemented.  If the court accepts the arguments of the 
opponents, and the contract is found to be null and void, the City will be left with various 
options.  It may do nothing and operate the library as is; it may reduce the funding of the library 
to reflect the lost budget savings anticipated under the contract; and it may seek out other 
providers of library services.  In the end, the City Council at all times has complete discretion 
over the library budget.  

To allow time to examine filed lawsuits against the City, and perhaps even the Library Board, 
the contract provides for a period of up to 90 days to implement the terms of the agreement.  
The City and LS&S will work cooperatively to identify the best date to turn over operations to 
LS&S.  
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Jeffrey Epp, City Manager     Michael McGuinness, City Attorney 

10/12/2017 8:42 a.m.      10/12/2017 9:02 a.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2017-139 
2. Resolution No. 2017-139 - Exhibit A - Professional Services Agreement 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-139 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
CLERK TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH LIBRARY 
SYSTEMS & SERVICES, LLC, FOR THE 
OPERATION OF THE ESCONDIDO PUBLIC 
LIBRARY 

 WHEREAS, Escondido is a full-service city which maintains its own police 

department, fire department, water and wastewater utilities and other city departments 

including a public library; and  

WHEREAS, the Escondido Public Library, which operates 51 hours per week and 

not on Sundays, was the subject of a recent San Diego County Grand Jury Report relating 

to claimed unsatisfactory performance.  While the City disagreed with certain Grand Jury 

findings, it concurred that the Library has certain performance deficiencies and its 

operations could be improved; and  

WHEREAS, for the past several years, the Escondido City Council has adopted a 

balanced budget without the use of reserves.  Financial stability is one of the four parts 

of the 2017-2018 City Council Action Plan.  Planning ahead is a key part of maintaining 

financial stability; and 

WHEREAS, Library Systems & Services, LLC (LS&S), has been providing library 

management services for over 30 years, and has contracted with public entities across 

the United States to provide library management services.  A large portion of its work is 

in California, including libraries in Riverside County, Simi Valley, Santa Clarita, Moorpark, 

Moreno Valley, and Shasta County; and   

Agenda Item No.:  6 

Date: October 18, 2017



 WHEREAS, on August 23, 2017, consistent with its Fiscal Management 

component of the Council Action Plan, the City Council conducted a public hearing to 

examine the possibility, consequences and potential fiscal savings related to outsourcing 

the operation of the Escondido Public Library to Library Systems & Services, LLC; and 

 WHEREAS, the fiscal analysis of the outsourcing plan indicates that the City would 

yield yearly savings of approximately $400,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the outsourcing of the library to LS&S would be consistent with state 

law, including the California Municipal Libraries Act, would enhance the involvement of 

the Library Board of Trustees in all facets of library operations, would benefit library 

patrons by providing a vibrant library facility, and would benefit the taxpayers of the City 

through substantial savings to general fund expenditures.   

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Attorney recommend the approval and 

execution of the Professional Services Agreement with LS&S for the Operation of the 

Escondido Public Library. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:         

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 

enter into and execute, on behalf of the City of Escondido, the Professional Services 

Agreement with Library Systems & Services, LLC, for the Operation of the Escondido 

Public Library, with such non-substantive changes approved by the City Attorney and 

consistent with Council’s directions. A copy of the Agreement is attached as Exhibit “A” 

and is incorporated by this reference.  



 

Page 1 of 14 
 

  
  

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR THE OPERATION  
OF THE ESCONDIDO PUBLIC LIBARY  

 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this __ day of _________, 2017 (“Effective 
Date”), by and between the CITY OF ESCONDIDO (“CITY”), a California municipal corporation, 
and LIBARARY SYSTEMS AND SERVICES, LLC. (“LS&S”), a Maryland limited liability company.  

I. 

RECITALS 

1. It has been determined to be in the CITY's best interest to enter into this Agreement with 
LS&S to provide special services for the operation of the Escondido Public Library 
(“Library”); and 

2. LS&S is considered competent to perform the necessary professional Library services as 
described herein for CITY.  

II. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between CITY and LS&S as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.   

A. LS&S will furnish and perform all of the services (“Services”) and provide the supplies 
or goods as described in Attachment A which is incorporated by this reference as 
though set forth here in full.   

B. While performing the services provided for in this Agreement, LS&S will use 
appropriate and generally accepted professional standards of practice existing at the 
time of the performance utilized by persons engaged in providing similar services.  
CITY will continuously monitor LS&S’s services.  CITY agrees to notify LS&S of any 
deficiencies in satisfying the requirements of this Agreement and LS&S will have (30) 
days after such notification to cure any shortcomings to CITY’s reasonable 
satisfaction.  All costs associated with curing the deficiencies shall be borne solely by 
LS&S. 

C. LS&S will be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and coordination of all reports and other services furnished by LS&S under 
this Agreement, except that LS&S will not be responsible for the accuracy of 
information supplied by the CITY. 

EXHIBIT "A"

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 42



 

Page 2 of 14 
 

2. Compensation.   

A. The CITY will pay LS&S in accordance with the conditions specified in Attachment A 
hereto.   

B. The compensation paid under this Agreement by CITY shall be for LS&S’s overall 
performance of all services performed on behalf of CITY and not compensation for the 
specific individuals employed at CITY’s facilities that are solely and exclusively in the 
employ of and work for LS&S. 

C. LS&S will be compensated for performance of tasks specified in Attachment A only.  If 
LS&S believes work not within the Scope of Services (“Additional Work”) is needed to 
complete the Scope of Services, LS&S shall notify the CITY in a writing that contains 
a specific description of the proposed Additional Work, reasons for the Additional Work 
and why it could not have been anticipated at the time this Agreement was entered 
into, and a detailed cost proposal for completion of the Additional Work.  No 
compensation will be provided for any Additional Work without specific prior written 
consent from the CITY.   

D. Any breach of this Agreement will relieve CITY from the obligation to pay LS&S for the 
disputed services, if LS&S has not corrected the breach or deficiency after CITY 
provides notice and a reasonable time to correct it as provided for in this Agreement.   

3. Term.  

A. The initial term of this Agreement will be from [_______], 2017 (the “Effective Date”) 
to and including [__________], 2027.   

B. The CITY, acting through to its authorized designee(s), may extend the term of this 
Agreement, subject to the termination procedures as provided in Paragraph 13, on the 
same terms and conditions as in effect just before the then-current end of the term, for 
up to two (2) successive periods of five (5) years each by providing written notice to 
LS&S no later than one hundred eighty (180) days before the then-current end of the 
term.   

4. Time for Performance.  

A. LS&S will not perform any work under this Agreement until all parties have executed 
the Agreement and CITY has provided written Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) to LS&S 
under the Agreement.  CITY and LS&S shall coordinate establishing the date for the 
commencement of the provision of services to be included in the NTP but such date 
shall be no later than 90 days from the Effective Date.  Any work performed by LS&S 
prior to the date for the commencement of services established the NTP shall be at its 
own risk and without compensation. 

B. The parties to this Agreement acknowledge that current CITY employees represented 
by one or more bargaining units, or others, may initiate legal procedures or actions to 
prevent the full and/or timely implementation of this Agreement (“Third Party Actions”).  
Based on their current understanding of the facts, the parties believe that any such 
Third Party Actions would be without merit.  LS&S agrees to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless CITY, and its councilmembers, officers, and employees, for all claims, 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 42



 

Page 3 of 14 
 

liabilities and attorney’s fees incurred by LS&S and CITY, arising out of or related to 
any Third Party Actions that arise from the acts or omissions by LS&S occurring after 
the Effective Date of this Agreement and the receipt of an NTP from CITY.   

5. Employment of Current CITY Employees. 

A. CITY and LS&S have a shared interest in ensuring that LS&S has access to a 
workforce of experienced workers and CITY desires to mitigate the effects of this 
Agreement on current CITY employees performing special services at the Library 
Facility (“Current Employee”).   

B. LS&S agrees to extend an offer of employment to each Current Employee in 
accordance with applicable labor laws. The terms and conditions of such employment 
are decided by LS&S, not CITY, and will be on different terms than those currently in 
place between CITY and Current Employees. 

C. Said Current Employees are free to accept such offer of employment or reject same.  
The acceptance or rejection of such offer is an individual decision of each Current 
Employee and they shall have no further rights or claims against CITY related to or 
arising out of this Agreement or the employment terms and conditions they accept or 
which may thereafter be offered to them during the term of the Agreement or 
thereafter.  No co-employment relationship is intended or created by this Agreement. 

D. LS&S’s obligations under this Agreement shall not be reduced or altered in any way 
depending on the Current Employees who accept or reject an offer of employment.  

6. Changes in Scope of Services.  

CITY may request changes in the Scope of Services identified in Attachment A, including 
the addition, revision or deletion of services, within the general scope of this Agreement. 
The contract sum and time for performance related to such services, if different than that 
included herein, shall be committed to a writing executed by LS&S and the CITY.  Any 
additional cost or credit to the CITY shall be determined in accordance with the agreement 
for such change in scope of services.     

7. Familiarity with Work. 

A. LS&S agrees that it has: 

1. Carefully investigated and considered the extent of the Scope of Services to be 
performed to satisfy the terms of this Agreement, including Attachment A; and 

2. Carefully investigated and considered the facilities, collections, equipment, data, 
personnel, and budgets to the extent provided by CITY to perform this Agreement; 
and 

3. Satisfied itself that it can comply with all terms of the Agreement and deliver all 
services described in the Scope of Services within the budgets and pricing 
identified in this Agreement and Attachments hereto; and 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 42



 

Page 4 of 14 
 

4. Satisfied itself that it has the financial resources; insurance; service experience; 
existing in-house personnel; staffing capacity; current workload; licenses; 
completion ability; private consultants; vendors; and experience in dealing with 
individual volunteers, volunteer organizations, community groups, non-profit and 
charitable organizations, established Library Boards, public agencies and their 
staff, to satisfy and comply with all terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

B. LS&S agrees that should it discover any circumstances or condition(s) which may 
materially affect its performance of this Agreement as required by this Agreement, it 
will immediately inform CITY of such fact. 

8. Conflict of Interest. 

LS&S covenants that neither it nor any officer or principal of the firm have any interests 
nor shall they acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which will conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of their services described herein.  LS&S further 
covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, it shall employ no person having 
such interest as an officer, employee, agent or subcontractor.  LS&S, by and through its 
officers, employees and agents, agrees to familiarize itself and comply with the CITY’s 
conflict of interest laws and regulations.  LS&S further covenants and agrees that it, 
including its officers, employees and agents, will make no monetary contributions to any 
political campaign of any CITY officer, council member or employee. 

9. Library Board of Trustees.  The parties to this Agreement covenant and agree that the 
Escondido Public Library Board of Trustees shall continue to have the rights, duties and 
responsibilities provided for in California Education Code section 18900 et. seq., and as 
otherwise provided for in state and local law. 

10. Volunteers. The parties hereto agree that LS&S shall not engage or manage any 
volunteers at the CITY Library or any Library-related facility.  CITY will maintain 
responsibility for the engagement or management of any volunteers at the CITY Library 
or any Library-related facility.  LS&S will coordinate with such agencies or entities involved 
in the organization and assignment of any volunteers who chose to donate personal 
services at any CITY Library or Library-related facility.  Any donated personal services will 
be outside the Scope of Services described in this Agreement.  LS&S agrees that it may 
satisfy all obligations under this Agreement without reliance on volunteers. 

11. Termination. 

A. CITY may terminate this Agreement for material breach at any time after LS&S fails to 
cure any material breach identified by CITY as provided in Paragraph 1.B. of this 
Agreement within (60) days from CITY’s written notice of default.   

B. LS&S may terminate this Agreement at any time for material breach or CITY’s failure 
to make payments as provided for in this Agreement when due if CITY fails to cure 
such material breach within thirty (30) days from CITY’s written notice or fails to make 
payment within ten (10) days from the due date. 

C.  In the event that funds for the following CITY fiscal year are not appropriated for the 
Library, then this Agreement shall terminate as of June 30 of the last fiscal year for 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 42



 

Page 5 of 14 
 

which funds were appropriated. The CITY shall immediately notify LS&S in writing of 
any such non-allocation of funds.   

D. Upon receiving a termination notice from CITY in conformance with this Agreement, 
LS&S shall immediately cease performance under this Agreement unless otherwise 
provided for in the termination notice or agreed by the parties in writing.  Except as 
otherwise provided for in the Agreement or the termination notice, any work performed 
by LS&S after receiving the termination notice will be performed at LS&S’s own cost 
and CITY will not be obligated to compensate LS&S for such work. 

E. If this Agreement is terminated by either party in conformance with the provisions 
herein, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, reports, and other 
materials, in any form, prepared by LS&S specifically for the CITY will, at the CITY’s 
option and upon final payment to LS&S of all amounts due under this Agreement or 
extensions or amendments thereto, become CITY’s property.  LS&S shall receive 
reasonable compensation for any work satisfactorily performed under this Agreement 
to the effective date of any termination notice. 

F. Upon any termination of this Agreement, each Party shall (i) immediately discontinue 
all use of the other Party’s Confidential Information; (ii) delete the other Party’s 
Confidential Information from its computer storage or any other media, including, but 
not limited to, online and off-line libraries; and (iii) shall return to the other Party or, at 
the other Party’s option, destroy, all copies of such other Party’s Confidential 
Information then in its possession (including the Documentation). 

G. Should the Agreement be terminated by either party pursuant to this Section, CITY 
may obtain on its own terms services similar to those terminated. 

12. Permits and Licenses. 

LS&S, at its sole expense, will obtain and maintain current during the term of this 
Agreement, all necessary permits, licenses and certificates for itself and its employees 
and agents that may be required by any agency or entity having jurisdiction over the 
services covered by this Agreement. 

13. City Property.   

All physical property of any kind, including buildings, fixtures, furniture, equipment, books, 
collections, art, and other tangible property owned by CITY at the commencement of this 
term of this Agreement, and all such property acquired for the benefit of the CITY and paid 
for by the compensation provided herein, however described, shall at all times be CITY 
property and LS&S shall have no ownership interest therein.  

14. Format of Electronic Data. 

Any and all electronic documents or files provided to the CITY by LS&S, or any of its sub-
consultants or vendors, shall use Microsoft Office Suite application software for Windows 
or a format pre-approved in writing by the CITY. 

 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 42



 

Page 6 of 14 
 

15. Confidential Information and Intellectual Property. 

A. Confidential Information. In the performance of this Agreement, LS&S may be exposed 
to information regarding the identity of the CITY’s patrons, CITY may be exposed to 
information regarding LS&S’s proprietary library management techniques, and either 
Party may be exposed to other written or oral information, disclosed by either Party to 
the other, related to either Party or a third party that has been identified as confidential 
or that by the nature of the circumstances surrounding disclosure ought reasonably to 
be treated as confidential (collectively, “Confidential Information”).  Each Party shall:  
(1) use the same care to protect the other Party’s Confidential Information from 
disclosure that such Party uses to protect its own information of like importance; (2) 
limit duplication of Confidential Information to the extent needed to perform this 
Agreement; and (3) disclose Confidential Information only to employees having a need 
to know in connection with performance of this Agreement, and who are informed of 
the contents of this provision prior to disclosure.  This provision shall survive 
termination or expiration of this Agreement; and, on such termination or expiration, 
each Party shall return all Confidential Information, including all copies, to the owner 
of such information and, if requested, shall certify in writing that all such information 
has been returned.  Because the damage resulting from a breach of this provision 
would be difficult or impossible to quantify and remedy at law, in case of such breach, 
or the threat of such breach, the Party whose Confidential Information is threatened to 
be disclosed shall be entitled to injunctive or other equitable relief. 

B. Exceptions.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of Section 15(A) above, 
shall not apply to Confidential Information that (i) is publicly available or in the public 
domain at the time disclosed; (ii) is or becomes publicly available or enters the public 
domain through no fault of the recipient; (iii) is rightfully communicated to the recipient 
by persons not bound by confidentiality obligations with respect thereto; (iv) is already 
in the recipient’s possession free of any confidentiality obligations with respect thereto 
at the time of disclosure; (v) is independently developed by the recipient; or (vi) is 
approved for release or disclosure by the disclosing Party without restriction.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party may disclose Confidential Information to 
the limited extent required: (1) in order to comply with the order of a court or other 
governmental body, or as otherwise necessary to comply with applicable law, provided 
that the Party making the disclosure pursuant to the order shall first have given written 
notice to the other Party and made a reasonable effort to obtain a protective order; or 
(2) to establish a Party’s rights under this Agreement, including to make such court 
filings as it may be required to do. 

C. Intellectual Property. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, LS&S 
hereby grants to CITY a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable 
right and license to use the Documentation (defined below), as provided by LS&S, 
during the term of this Agreement, solely for CITY’s internal business purposes.  CITY 
shall not use the Documentation for any purposes beyond the scope of the license 
granted in this Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, CITY shall 
not (i) market or distribute the Documentation; (ii) make any copies of the 
Documentation; (iii) assign, sublicense, sell, lease, or otherwise transfer or convey, or 
pledge as security or otherwise encumber, CITY’s rights under the license granted in 
this Section 15(c); or (iv) modify the Documentation, except with prior written consent 
of LS&S.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that if CITY modifies or improves the 
Documentation, all such modifications or improvements shall be considered part of the 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 42



 

Page 7 of 14 
 

Documentation, and shall be owned by LS&S, and CITY hereby assigns to LS&S all 
right and title to such modifications or improvements.  Other than as set forth in this 
paragraph, nothing in this Agreement confers any license or right to use any 
trademark, service mark, copyright or other intellectual property right, whether now 
owned or hereafter developed, of either Party.  For the purposes of this Agreement, 
“Documentation” means the standard user manuals, instructions and related 
documentation made available by LS&S to CITY. 

16. Insurance. 

A. Before commencing performance under this Agreement, and at all other times this 
Agreement is effective, LS&S shall secure and maintain at its own cost, for all 
operations, the following insurance coverage, unless reduced by written agreement 
signed by both parties: 

Type of Insurance Limits 

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 

Business Automobile Liability $1,000,000 

Workers Compensation Per Statute 

Errors & Omissions $1,000,000  

B.  Commercial general liability insurance will meet or exceed the requirements of ISO 
Form No. CG 00 01. The amount of insurance set forth herein will be a combined 
single limit per occurrence including products and completed operations, property 
damage, bodily injury and personal and advertising injury, with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with at least $2,000,000 aggregate coverage.  
Liability policies will be endorsed to name CITY, and its officials and employees, as 
“additional insureds” under said insurance coverage. Such endorsement must be at 
least as broad as, or reflected on, ISO Form No. CG 20 10 11 85 or equivalent, or both 
CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later editions 
are used. Such insurance will be on an “occurrence,” and not a “claims made,” basis 
and will not be cancelable or subject to reduction except with agreement of CITY and 
upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to CITY. 

C. Insurance coverage must be provided by an A.M. Best's A- rated, class VII carrier      
or better, admitted in California, or if non-admitted, a company that is on the 
Department of Insurance List of Approved Surplus Lines Insurers.  All non-admitted 
carriers will be required to provide a service of suit endorsement in addition to the 
additional insured endorsement. 

D. It is the parties’ understanding that the use of a motor vehicle is not a primary subject 
of this Agreement. LS&S acknowledges that operating a motor vehicle is outside the 
scope of this Agreement and occurs only at the convenience of the LS&S. 

E. LS&S agrees to furnish to CITY, within fourteen (14) days of the execution of this 
Agreement and before the date of the NTP, duly authenticated Certificates of 
Insurance evidencing maintenance of the insurance required by this Agreement and 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 42



 

Page 8 of 14 
 

such other evidence of insurance or copies of policies as may reasonably be requested 
by CITY. 

F. If for any reason LS&S fails to obtain or maintain the insurance required by this 
Agreement, CITY may terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11A. 

G. LS&S herby grants to CITY a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of 
said LS&S may acquire against the CITY by virtue of the payment of any loss under 
such insurance.  LS&S agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to 
affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or 
not the CITY has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.   

17. Warranties; Disclaimers.   

A. The CITY represents and warrants that it has all requisite power and authority to execute 
and deliver this Agreement and to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.  All 
approvals on the part of the CITY necessary for the CITY’s authorization of this 
Agreement and the performance of all obligations of the CITY hereunder have been 
taken.  This Agreement, when executed and delivered, will be valid and binding 
obligations of the CITY enforceable in accordance with their terms, except (a) as limited 
by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of 
general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights, (b) general principles of 
equity that restrict the availability of equitable remedies, and (c) as required by court 
order.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that the obligations specified in 
Section 19 shall survive termination, expiration, or rescission of this Agreement.  No 
governmental orders, permissions, consents, approvals or authorizations are required 
to be obtained by the CITY in connection with the CITY’s execution and delivery of this 
Agreement or the CITY’s obligations hereunder.  The CITY will not violate any applicable 
statute, rule, regulation, order or restriction of any domestic or foreign government or 
any instrumentality or agency thereof in connection with the CITY’s performance of all 
obligations of the CITY hereunder. 

B.  LS&S has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and 
to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.  All approvals on the part of LS&S 
necessary for LS&S’ authorization of this Agreement and the performance of all 
obligations of LS&S hereunder has been taken.  This Agreement, when executed and 
delivered, will be valid and binding obligations of LS&S enforceable in accordance with 
their terms, except (a) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ 
rights, (b) general principles of equity that restrict the availability of equitable remedies, 
and (c) as required by court order.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that 
the obligations specified in Section 19 shall survive termination, expiration, or rescission 
of this Agreement. No governmental orders, permissions, consents, approvals or 
authorizations are required to be obtained by LS&S in connection with LS&S’ execution 
and delivery of this Agreement or LS&S’ obligations hereunder.  LS&S will not violate 
any applicable statute, rule, regulation, order or restriction of any domestic or foreign 
government or any instrumentality or agency thereof in connection with the LS&S’ 
performance of all obligations of LS&S hereunder. 

C. LS&S warrants that it will perform hereunder with at least the care, diligence, and 
expertise generally accepted in the library service industry. Other than as set forth 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 42



 

Page 9 of 14 
 

expressly herein, there are no other warranties, express or implied, including 
warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. . 

18. Limitation of Liability.  Exclusive of any breaches of Section 15, in no event shall either 
party be liable to the other party for any incidental, special, consequential or punitive 
damages, regarding of the nature of the claim, including, without limitation, lost profits, 
costs of delay, any failure of delivery, business interruption, costs of lost or damaged data 
or documentation or liabilities to third parties arising from any source, even if such party 
has been advised of the possibility of such damages.  This limitation upon damages and 
claims is intended to apply without regard to whether other provisions of this Agreement 
have been breached or have proved ineffective.  Exclusive of obligations related to Section 
19B, the cumulative liability of each party to the other party, for all claims arising from or 
related to this Agreement, including, without limitation, any cause of action sounding in 
contract, tort, or strict liability, shall not exceed the lesser of (1) the actual damages 
suffered by the aggrieved party, or (2) five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000). 

19. Indemnification.  

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, LS&S shall hold harmless, defend (with counsel 
reasonably acceptable to CITY), and indemnify CITY, including all of its officers, 
council members, employees, agents, insurers, and consultants, past and present 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “CITY Indemnitees”), from any claim, demand, 
judgment, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense, including attorney’s fees, for any 
damage arising out of: (i) failure to comply with any applicable laws as identified 
herein, or (ii) a breach of a representation or warranty of LS&S, except such damage 
as is caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY Indemnitees.  
CITY shall give prompt notice to LS&S of any matter asserted by CITY to be covered 
by this provision. 

B. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CITY shall hold harmless, defend (with counsel 
reasonably acceptable to LS&S), and indemnify LS&S, including all of its officers, 
employees, agents, insurers, and consultants, past and present (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “LS&S Indemnitees”), from any claim, demand, judgment, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense, including attorney’s fees, for any damage 
arising out of or in connection with any personal injury, property damage or failure to 
comply with any laws as identified herein, resulting from a breach of CITY’s 
performance obligations of this Agreement by CITY or a breach of a representation 
or warranty of CITY, except such damage as is caused by the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of the LS&S Indemnitees. LS&S shall give prompt notice to CITY 
of any matter asserted by LS&S to be covered by this provision.   

C. CITY does not and shall not waive any rights that it may have against LS&S by reason 
of this Indemnification provision because of the acceptance by CITY, or deposit with 
CITY, of any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This 
hold harmless, defense and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of 
whether or not said insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, 
demand, judgment, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense, including attorney’s fees 
as identified herein. 

20. Waiver. Neither LS&S’ nor CITY’s review or acceptance of, or payment for, services or 
work product completed by either party under the Agreement shall be construed to operate 

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 42



 

Page 10 of 14 
 

as a waiver of any rights the other party may have under the Agreement or of any cause 
of action arising from either party’s performance.  A waiver by either party of any breach 
of any term, covenant, or condition contained in this Agreement will not be deemed to be 
a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition 
contained in this Agreement. 

21. Anti-Assignment Clause.  Neither party may assign, delegate or transfer any interest or 
duty under this Agreement without advance written approval of the other party, and any 
attempt to do so will immediately render this entire Agreement null and void; except that 
LS&S may subcontract or delegate portions of the Services with CITY’s approval, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, that in no case shall CITY 
be liable to any party other than LS&S, or for any amount in excess of the price specified 
on Attachment A, plus any additional charges permitted hereunder.  LS&S shall be the 
sole payee under this Agreement.  Any and all payments made pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement are otherwise not assignable.   

22. Costs and Attorney's Fees.  In the event that legal action is required to enforce the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs. 

23. Independent Contractor.   

A. LS&S is an independent contractor and no agency or employment relationship of any 
kind, either express or implied, is created by the execution of this Agreement.   

B. The provision of library services to government entities is an integral part of the 
regular business operations of LS&S.  LS&S will have exclusive control over all work 
performed by its employees and the manner in which it is performed.  LS&S 
employees performing services related to this Agreement will be interviewed, 
screened, hired, trained, managed, evaluated, transferred, promoted, demoted, 
disciplined and terminated by LS&S.  LS&S shall have exclusive control over the 
determination of the skills required for specific workers and tasks; the source of the 
instrumentalities and tools used by its employees, subcontractors, consultants, and 
vendors, if any; the duration of the employment relationship between LS&S and its 
employees; its employees’ salaries and benefits, including increases or reductions 
thereto; employee work schedules, duty assignments, location of employment; the 
selection of managers; and timesheet approval.  LS&S shall have the exclusive right 
to assign additional projects to its employees, to determine hours worked, and to 
determine whether its employees may hire and pay assistants. LS&S employee 
salary and benefits structure and amounts shall be determined independent of the 
compensation received from CITY under this Agreement.  

C. LS&S shall be exclusively responsible for paying appropriate employer taxes, social 
security and government insurance payments in accordance with state and federal 
law.   

D. LS&S is permitted to contract for similar services to other entities, local governments 
or employers while this Agreement is in effect.   

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 42



 

Page 11 of 14 
 

E. LS&S and its employees are not entitled to participate in any CITY pension or 
retirement plan, insurance program, bonus payouts, or similar benefits CITY regularly 
provides to CITY employees.   

F. Any provision of this Agreement, or services performed by LS&S during the term of 
this Agreement, which may appear to give the CITY the right to direct LS&S as to the 
details of doing the work or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall only 
constitute general guidance and direction as to end results consistent with the terms 
and spirit of this Agreement.  

G. Because the parties expressly believe and agree that LS&S employees working at 
any CITY facility are not CITY employees, common law or otherwise, and have no 
claims to any California Public Employee Retirement System (“CalPERS”) benefits 
beyond those that are vested and known at the time this Agreement becomes 
effective, should CalPERS or any administrative or judicial body of competent 
jurisdiction make any finding that such employees are entitled to CalPERS 
compensation or benefits not anticipated by the parties at the time this Agreement 
becomes effective, this Agreement may be terminated by CITY or LS&S by providing 
the other party with 30 days written notice.  

H. The parties expressly believe and agree that any Current Employee who accepts an 
offer of employment with LS&S, and thereby becomes an LS&S employee, is not 
upon acceptance of such employment represented by a union or collective bargaining 
unit and does not have any rights under state or federal law to representation in 
collective bargaining for compensation, benefits or workplace conditions.  If any 
adjudicative or administrative body of competent jurisdiction determines otherwise, 
LS&S shall be solely and exclusively responsible for meeting its legal obligations to 
bargain and the results of any such bargaining with its employees and/or their 
representatives. 

24. Non-solicitation.  CITY acknowledges and agrees that the employees and consultants of 
LS&S who perform the Services are a valuable asset to LS&S and are difficult to replace.  
Accordingly, CITY agrees that, during the Term of the Agreement, and for a period of one 
(1) year after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, it shall not solicit (whether 
as an employee, independent contractor or consultant) any LS&S employee or consultant 
who performs any of the Services.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this restriction shall not 
apply to any individual employed by the other who voluntarily seeks employment in 
response to general employment advertisements in the public commercial media. 

25. Right to Audit. LS&S shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to all 
services and matters covered by this Agreement.  CITY will have access at all reasonable 
times to such records, and the right to examine and audit the same and to make transcript 
therefrom, and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings and activities.   

26. Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement and each of terms may only be amended 
and/or modified by a writing signed by each party through their designated and authorized 
representative. 

27. Merger Clause.  This Agreement, including its Attachments, is the entire understanding of 
the parties, and there are no other terms or conditions, written or oral, controlling the 
agreement of the parties for the subject matter described herein.   

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 42



 

Page 12 of 14 
 

28. Severability.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement will not 
void or affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions of this Agreement. 

29. Choice of Law.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue 
for all actions arising from this Agreement must be exclusively in the state or federal courts 
located in San Diego County, California. 

30. Interpretation of Agreement.  The parties agree that this Agreement and each of its terms 
was negotiated at arms-length and each party has had the opportunity to independently 
review this Agreement with legal counsel.  Accordingly, this Agreement, and each of its 
terms and Attachments, will be construed as a whole in accordance with its fair and 
reasonable meanings and will not be interpreted against either party. 

31. Multiple Copies of Agreement/Counterparts.  Multiple copies and/or counterparts of this 
Agreement may be executed, including duplication by photocopy or by computerized 
scanning device.  Each duplicate will be deemed an original with the same effect as if all 
the signatures were on the same instrument.  However, the parties agree that the 
Agreement on file in the office of the Escondido City Clerk is the copy of the Agreement 
that shall take precedence should any differences exist among copies or counterparts of 
the document. 

32. Notices to Parties.  Any statements, communications or notices to be provided pursuant 
to this Agreement must be sent to the attention of the persons indicated below.   

If to LS&S: 

Library Systems & Services, LLC 
2600 Tower Oaks Blvd., Suite 510 
Rockville, MD 20852 
Attn: President 

If to CITY: 

City of Escondido 
201 N. Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025 
Attn: City Manager 

Any such written communications by mail will be conclusively deemed to have been 
received by the addressee upon deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid 
and properly addressed as noted above.  In all other instances, notice will be deemed 
given at the time of actual delivery.  Each party agrees to promptly send notice of any 
changes of this information to the other party, at the address first above written. 

33. Business License.  LS&S is required to obtain a City of Escondido Business License prior 
to execution of this Agreement. 

34. Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as specifically provided in Attachment A, this Agreement 
and every provision herein is for the exclusive benefit of CITY and LS&S and not for the 
benefit of any other person, entity or party.   

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 42



 

Page 13 of 14 
 

35. Compliance with Applicable Laws, Permits and Licenses.  LS&S shall keep itself informed 
of and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, 
ordinances, regulations, and rules in effect during the term of this Agreement.  LS&S shall 
obtain any and all licenses, permits, and authorizations necessary to perform services set 
forth in this Agreement.  CITY, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, 
employees, or agents shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of LS&S 
to comply with this section. 

36. Force Majeure.  Should performance of this Agreement be prevented due to fire, flood, 
explosion, acts of terrorism, war, non-CITY government action, civil or military authority, 
the natural elements, or other similar causes beyond the parties’ reasonable control, the 
Agreement will immediately terminate without obligation of either party to the other. 

37. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.  LS&S shall keep itself informed of and 
comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.  LS&S affirms that as an 
employer in the State of California, all new employees must produce proof of eligibility to 
work in the United States within the first three days of employment and that only 
employees legally eligible to work in the United States will be employed on this public 
project.  LS&S agrees to comply with such provisions before commencing and 
continuously throughout the performance of this Agreement. 

38. Captions.  The captions of the paragraphs in this Agreement and Attachments thereto are 
for convenience of reference only and are not intended to be material to the obligations of 
the parties and shall not affect the interpretation of the Agreement. 

39. Authority to Enter into Agreement.  The parties represent and warrant that all necessary 
action has been taken by the parties to authorize the undersigned to execute the 
Agreement and to undertake the respective duties assumed by each party herein.  

40. Provisions Cumulative.  The foregoing provisions are cumulative and in addition to and 
not in limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the parties under law. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

  

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 42



 

Page 14 of 14 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties below are authorized to act on behalf of their 
organizations, and have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth below. 

For CITY: 

Date: _____________________ ________________________________ 
 Sam Abed 
 Mayor 

Date: _____________________ ________________________________ 
 Diane Halverson 
 City Clerk 

 

For LS&S: 

 

Date:  __________________ By: ____________________________________ 
   Todd Frager, Chief Financial Officer  

  

  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, City Attorney 

 

By:  ______________________________ 

 

 

 

EAST\146259585.15  

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 42



Page 1 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 42



Page 2 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 42



Page 3 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 42



Page 4 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 18 of 42



Page 5 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 19 of 42



Page 6 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 20 of 42



Page 7 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 21 of 42



Page 8 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 22 of 42



Page 9 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 23 of 42



Page 10 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 24 of 42



Page 11 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 25 of 42



Page 12 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 26 of 42



Page 13 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 27 of 42



Page 14 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 28 of 42



Page 15 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 29 of 42



Page 16 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 30 of 42



Page 17 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 31 of 42



Page 18 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 32 of 42



Page 19 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 33 of 42



Page 20 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 34 of 42



Page 21 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 35 of 42



Page 22 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 36 of 42



Page 23 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 37 of 42



Page 24 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 38 of 42



Page 25 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 39 of 42

jekblad
Typewritten Text

jekblad
Typewritten Text

jekblad
Typewritten Text
e



Page 26 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 40 of 42



Page 27 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 41 of 42



Page 28 of 28

Resolution No. 2017-139 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 42 of 42



- 1 - 
 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
Updated October 12, 2017 

 

 

 

 
 
 

October 25, 2017 
4:30 p.m.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Approval of CalPERS Industrial Disability Retirement for Police Officer Scott 

Gudehus 
(S. Bennett) 
 
Request the City Council approve the Industrial Disability Retirement for Police Office Scott Gudehus.  

 Approval of CalPERS Industrial Disability Retirement for Fire Engineer John 
Grimm 
(S. Bennett) 
 
Request the City Council approve the Industrial Disability Retirement for Fire Engineer John Grimm. 

 Bid Award for the Purchase of 2018 Ford Interceptor Utility Vehicles for Police 
Patrol and Fire Prevention 
(S. Bennett) 
 
To procures new Police Patrol and Fire Prevention vehicles in accordance with the City’s Vehicle Replacement 
Policy. On September 18, 2017, request for bids was duly published and emailed to eight vendors. Four bids 

were received and opened on October 2, 2017. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 Short-Form Rent Review Board Hearing for Town & Country Club Park  

(B. Martin) 
 
The amount requested covers a 24-month period of consideration from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 
2016. The Park is requesting 75 percent of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the period of 3.339 
percent of the 152 spaces subject to rent control, the park is requesting an increase for 21 spaces with new 
leases, vacancies, or park owned coaches. The average space rent for the 131 remaining spaces is $505.69. 
The requested average monthly increase per space is approximately $14.30. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

 Sale of 480 North Spruce, 455 North Quince, and 525 North Quince to Badiee 
Development 
(J. Epp) 
 
Badiee Development has submitted an offer to purchase the subject properties for the development of an 
industrial project. The City’s appraisal validated the offer. Staff will return to Council for approval of a purchase 
and sale agreement once it is completed.  

  

AGENDA ITEMS AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

CHECK WITH THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT 839-4617 

Agenda Item No. :  7 

Date: October 18, 2017



- 2 - 
 

October 25, 2017 
Continued  

CURRENT BUSINESS Continued 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Housing Related Park Program Grant Fund Budget 

Adjustment 
(J. Goulart) 
 
The City of Escondido has been awarded $1,207,000 in grant funds from the California Department of Housing 
and Community Development to complete park/recreation facilities projects in low-moderate income areas. 
A budget adjustment is necessary to accept funds and begin projects.  

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (D. Halverson) 
 
 

November 1, 2017 
4:30 p.m.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Proposed Rate Increase from Escondido Disposal for Solid Waste and Recycling 
Rates/Fees for Residential and Commercial Collection 
(J. Goulart) 
 
Escondido Disposal’s Solid Waste and Recycling Services Rates and Fees are reviewed annually and adjusted 
accordingly based on a CPI formula as required in the City’s contract with Escondido Disposal.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

 Solutions for Change Request for Funding 
(B. Martin) 
 
Historically, Solutions for Change has received federal funds for their family homeless program. Federal 
guidelines require recipients follow a “Housing First” model that Solutions for Change is fundamentally 
opposed. Solutions for Change has initiated the Mission: SolveIt Initiative to replace these federal funds while 
they work to change federal policy. Federal Housing and Urban Development (HUD) funds cannot be used to 
fund this request. Reprogrammed recycled Redevelopment Funds or General Funds may be used to fund this 
request.  

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (D. Halverson) 
 
 
 



 

1 
 

October 12, 2017 
 
FEATURED THIS WEEK 
 
Our Community Gives Back! 
Emmanuel Faith Community Church held a “Serve Day” on Saturday, October 7, 2017 
focusing on City beautification at Kit Carson Park and the Neighborhood Transformation 
Project area III (NTP III) which includes the area between W. 5th Ave. to W. 9th Ave. and from 
S. Pine St. to S. Tulip St. 162 volunteers participated alongside City staff from the Escondido 
Police Department and Public Works. 
 
Emanuel Faith’s video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=IlCFOHTusG4 
 
For more information about the NTP clean-up, see the Police Event section of this week’s 
report. 
 
Escondido Sends Units to California Wildfires 
Escondido Fire Department Captain Head, Engineer Good and Firefighter Paramedics Smith 
and McCauley (OES 8632) were deployed to the Canyon 2 Fire in Anaheim Hills. As of midday 
Wednesday, the blaze had charred 8,000 acres and was 45 percent contained. Authorities 
said a total of 15 structures, many of them homes, were destroyed in the blaze. Nearly a dozen 
more homes were damaged in the ferocious blaze. The cause of the Canyon 2 Fire was 
unknown. 
 
Escondido Fire Department Engineer Dominic Polito was deployed to the Tubbs Fire in 
Sonoma County as a Public Information Officer. The Tubbs Fire has burned over 28,000 acres 
of the Santa Rosa area and is responsible for 11 deaths in Sonoma County, making it the 
sixth-deadliest fire in California history.  
 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
WOW Jam Escondido 

Saturday, October 14 | Grape Day Park 
https://www.wowjam.com/escondido-wow-jam/  
 
Grand Avenue Festival  
Sunday, October 15 | 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. along Grand Avenue in Downtown Escondido  
 
Formally known as the Escondido Street Faire… The Grand Ave Festival is bigger and better 
than ever! Over 500 vendors, live entertainment, and food from around the world have 
combined to make the Grand Ave Festival the 2nd largest street fair in California and a family 
tradition since 1989. http://escondidochamber.org/  



 

 2 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
Major Projects Update 
The following major projects are currently being reviewed and coordinated with Planning, 
Engineering, Fire, Building and Utilities staff. A complete description of each project can be 
viewed here. Updates provided below cover project milestones that occurred last week. 
 
Commercial / Office: 
 
1. Escondido Research and Technology Center – West (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 

A plan for a new two-story, 57,000 SF, 52-bed Palomar Rehabilitation Institute was submitted 
on July 31, 2017. The applicant submitted revised grading and landscape plans and a storm 
water management plan three weeks ago. Revised elevations were submitted to Planning on 
October 3, 2017. 

 
2. Centre City Commercial Center (Developer: Todd Dwyer) SE corner Centre City/Mission – 

The expedited plan check process for the grading, building and landscape plans and the 
final parcel map started on July 25, 2017. Review is concluding and plans are close to 
approval, but minor comments remain so coordination with Engineering is underway to try 
to avoid the need for a third plan check. Comments on the carwash building plans were 
sent by Planning on October 2, 2017.  The precise grading plan for the carwash lot was 
submitted last week. 

 
Industrial 

 
1. Escondido Self-Storage Facility (Developer: Brandywine Homes, Inc.) 2319 Cranston Dr. – 

Revised grading, landscape, and street and improvement plans were submitted by the 
applicant on July 14, 2017. Engineering and Planning comments on those plans were 
returned to the applicant on August 11, 2017. The applicant resubmitted revised grading, 
landscape, and street improvement plans on September 15, 2017. Another revised grading 
plan was submitted last week. 

 
2. Exeter Harmony Grove Industrial Development (Developer: John Couvillion, Badiee 

Development) 1925 and 2005 Harmony Grove Road – This proposed combination of the 
previously approved Victory and Innovative Industrial Projects into an 11.04-acre site for a 
single-tenant 212,000 square foot industrial building was submitted as a modified Master and 
Precise Plan on September 25, 2017. Plans were distributed to all departments the following 
day for initial review and comments. Initial comments were returned to the applicant on 
September 29, 2017, with the remaining department comments sent on October 5, 2017. A 
Planning Commission hearing is anticipated on November 28, 2017.  Grading plans were 
submitted for concurrent, expedited processing on October 11, 2017. 

 
3. North American Self-Storage (Developer: Russ Colvin) 852 S. Metcalf – This project has 

participated in the expedited plan check program. The demo has been completed. Building 
plans were approved by Esgil, Planning and Fire the last week of June. The grading permit 
was issued two weeks ago. The applicant has not started construction and is now proposing 
changes to the plans that would remove the basement level and potentially increase the 
building height.  

 



 

 3 

City Projects 
 
1. Micro-Filtration Reverse Osmosis (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) SE 

corner Ash/Washington – The lawsuit challenging the project approval has been settled and 
it is expected that a contract for engineering design will be considered soon. 

 
2. Lake Wohlford Replacement Dam (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – A 

Draft EIR was prepared and issued for a 45-day public review period that began on October 
4, 2016 and closed on November 17, 2016. A field visit with staff from the state and federal 
wildlife agencies took place on May 11, 2017, to review biological mitigation requirements. 
Staff sent a follow-up letter to the wildlife agencies on June 29, 2017, seeking clarification on 
the proposed biological mitigation requirements. Staff is now coordinating with the consultant 
to final the EIR and start the decision-making process. 

 
Institutional 
 
1. Self-Realization Fellowship Center (Developer: John Pyjar, Domusstudio Architecture 1840 

Del Dios Rd. – The CUP application was submitted on November 14, 2016. The applicant 
resubmitted revised plans and technical studies on May 19, 2017, and staff has been issuing 
comments on the various documents. Another resubmittal from the applicant was received 
on August 22, 2017. Comments from Engineering and Utilities were sent to the applicant last 
week and a follow-up meeting with the applicant occurred on October 4, 2017. A revised 
project submittal is expected soon. 

 
3. Chalice Unitarian Universalist Congregation (Developer: Pete Bussett, Bussett Architecture) 

2324 Miller Avenue – This CUP to expand an existing 3,300 square foot religious facility by 
adding approximately 3,100 square feet of multi-purpose building and foyer was originally 
submitted in November of 2015.  The applicant has been revising the project to respond to 
staff comments and meet the needs of the congregation. The Mitigated Negative Declaration 
is now in a public review period that extends from September 29, 2017 to October 18, 2017. 

 
Residential 

 
1. Citron (formerly Stella Park) (Developer: William Lyon Homes) 63 condo units at 2516 S. 

Esc. Blvd. – Building plans were submitted on April 6, 2017. Esgil and Planning have 
provided comments. Fire has approved the building plans. The rough grading has been 
completed on the site. The applicant resubmitted the precise grading plan on July 14, 2017. 
Engineering returned comments on August 15, 2017. The applicant has submitted revised 
grading plans and discussions are on-going regarding potential storm water solutions. 

 
2. Wohlford (Developer: Jack Henthorne) 55 lots at 661 Bear Valley Pkwy. –City staff is 

currently working to complete negotiations on the terms for the Development Agreement and 
schedule the item with the Planning Commission for review and consideration, most likely in 
January of 2018. 

 
3. Safari Highlands Ranch (SHR) (Developer: Jeb Hall, Concordia Homes) 550 lots east of 

Rancho San Pasqual – A second revised tentative map depicting various minor changes 
and clarifications to roads, easements and drainage facilities was submitted on April 25, 
2017. Revised technical engineering reports as well as responses to staff comments also 



 

 4 

have been submitted for review. The revised studies have been loaded on the City’s 
website at the following link:  Safari Highlands Ranch Specific Plan - City of Escondido. The 
applicant filed revised emergency access plans on September 15, 2017. These plans are 
currently being reviewed by Fire, Engineering and Planning. A Notice of Availability for the 
Draft EIR was issued on October 16, 2017. The Draft EIR has a 52-day public review 
period that starts on October 16 and ends on December 7, 2017. The Draft EIR and 
appendices have been posted on the Safari Highlands website link. 
 

4. 18 lots at 701 San Pasqual Valley Rd (Developer: Bob Stewart) – A three-year extension of 
time for the previously approved ten-lot subdivision (Tract 895) was approved by the City 
Council on June 7, 2017. Staff comments on the revised tentative map were issued the last 
week of July. Staff met with the applicant recently regarding unresolved project design 
issues. 

 
5. Escondido Gateway (Developer: Carolyn Hillgren, Lyon Living) 126 condo units at 700 W. 

Grand – Building plans have been approved by Esgil, Planning and Fire.  Grading plans have 
been approved by Utilities, Planning and Fire. A street vacation for right-of-way frontage 
along Grand Avenue is pending. Demolition is complete and permits are nearly ready to be 
issued. 

 
6. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West, Inc.) 392 

residences – Planning staff has provided a location on the city’s website for ECC project-
related documents and plans. A 45-day public review period for the Draft EIR ended on 
August 18, 2017. The Final EIR including responses to the comments that were received has 
been completed. The Final EIR and appendices have been placed on the city website. It is 
anticipated that the Planning Commission will review and consider the Project application on 
October 24th to make a recommendation to City Council. This information along with project 
status and other related information can be accessed at the following link: ECC - City of 
Escondido 

 
7. Ivy/Valley Parkway Mixed-Use Development (Developer: Abad Rahan Pars Inc./ Norm 

Wieme, Architect) 20 condo units at 113 N. Ivy - The applicant has indicated that grading and 
building plans are expected to be submitted into plan check soon. The reimbursement 
agreement for new water infrastructure that will be installed by the project in the adjoining 
alley is being readied for City Council approval. 

 
8. North Avenue Estates (Developer: Casey Johnson) 34 lots at North Ave./Conway Dr. – A 

new annexation survey of surrounding property owners was mailed out at the request of 
LAFCO. A neighborhood meeting hosted by staff and the project applicant occurred on 
August 9, 2017. The applicant has reviewed drainage issues with the Engineering Division 
and a revised tentative map has been submitted.  

 
9. Aspire (106 condo units on Municipal Lot 1) and The Ivy (95 condo units at 343 E. 2nd) 

(Developer: Addison Garza, Touchstone Communities) – The proposal consists of three 
separate downtown project sites proposed for mixed-use, residential and parking garage 
components on Parking Lot 1, Parking Lot 4 and the former Escondido Surgery Center 
property. Applications were submitted for entitlement processing on June 23, 2017. A project 
kick-off meeting with the applicant and city staff occurred on July 13, 2017. On July 24, 2017, 



 

 5 

staff sent a letter to the applicant indicating the project application submittal was incomplete. 
Subsequent meetings with the applicant and staff have been on-going.  

 
10. Grand Avenue Apartments (Developer: Norm LaCaze, Escondido Venture 99, LLC) 15 apt. 

units at 1316 E. Grand Ave. – A planned development application proposing 15 multi-family 
units in one three-story building on a vacant 0.51-acre lot was submitted for entitlement 
processing on September 22, 2017. 

 
Building Division 
 

 
 

Building Permits Issued Last Week Total Valuation 

98 $25,081,262 

 
 
1. A total of 22 solar photovoltaic permits were issued for the week.  The Building Division 

has issued 738 solar permits this year, to date, compared to 985 issued during the 
same time last year. 

 
2. Our building inspectors responded to 248 inspection requests for the week.  

 
3. Building has issued 185 single-family dwelling permits this year and 224 multi-family 

units.  This compares with 56 single family dwellings and 88 multi-family dwellings for 
the same time last year.  

 
4. Projects nearing permit issuance are: 

a. 917 W Lincoln, 3 new apartment buildings, 9 units.  
b. 700 W Grand Ave Gateway project (former police building) 

 
5. The construction of the City Plaza three-story mixed use building at 300 S. Escondido 

Blvd. continues with a request for temporary meter releases in preparation for building 
completion the first part of 2018. 

 



 

 6 

6. The Meadowbrook, three-story apartment building with underground garage at 2081 
Garden Valley Glen is preparing the building for final inspection. 

 
7. Escondido Disposal is requesting inspection for site walls and framing of the weigh 

station. 
 
8. The medical office building at 2125 Citracado Pkwy is now installing drywall and exterior 

lath. 
 
9. The medical office building at 1951 Citracado Pkwy has received inspection approval for 

drywall and interior shell.  Plans have been approved for the tenant improvement 
portion of the project.  Exterior stucco is being applied. 

 
10. The Westminster Seminary at 1725 Bear Valley Pkwy is preparing for exterior shear 

wall and framing inspections. 
 
11. The children’s building for Emanuel Faith Church at 639 E 17th Ave has received 

inspection approval for the framing of the building.  The Church of Resurrection at 1445 
Conway has received inspection approval for roof sheathing. 

 
12. The new Veterans Village project at 1540 S Escondido Blvd has received underground 

plumbing, partial foundation and masonry inspections for the residential buildings.  
 

13. The third and fourth lift of the exterior masonry walls are being erected at 999 N. 
Broadway for the new supermarket shell building. 

 
14. The Ford dealership at 1717 Auto Park Way has commenced on the second phase of 

construction which includes the interior remodel and new showroom addition. 
 

15. Permits were issued last week for seven new single-family dwellings in the Canyon 
Grove development by Shea Homes. 

 
16. The Latitude II multi-family residential development at 650 N. Centre City Parkway has 

received foundation inspection approval for Buildings 1 and 2. 
 

17. Permits were issued for four new single-family homes (TR 877) on Bernardo Avenue.  
Underground utilities are being inspected there also.  

 
18. Permits were issued on October 10, 2017 for Storquest – a four-story self-storage 

facility located at 222 W. Mission Ave. 
 

19. Permits were issued on October 9, 2017 for the new sanctuary building at the 
Escondido United Reformed Church located at 1864 N. Broadway. 

 



 

 7 

Code Enforcement 
 

 
 

Total Open Code Cases Illegal Signs Confiscated over the Previous 
Weekend 

330 73 

 
Business Licensing 
 

 
 



 

 8 

Public Works Operations 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 9 

Graffiti Restitution 
 

Collected This Week Collected Year to Date 

$132 $7065.71 

 
ENGINEERING 
 
Capital Improvements 
 
Valley Pkwy/Valley Center Road Widening Project 
The contractor has begun construction of the Valley Center Roadway segment north of Lake 
Wohlford Road. Work has started on the excavation of the existing bridge abutment in 
preparation of the bridge widening which will begin later this month. Staff is continuing to 
monitor the traffic impact in the corridor and are making adjustments to the traffic signal timing 
to accommodate the best travel time for the Valley Parkway portion of the roadway. A mobile 
electronic speed limit sign will be deployed later this week along Valley Center Road to 
reinforce the construction speed limit which is posted 25 MPH. Please be careful when 
traveling through the construction zone and please follow the posted speed limits.  
 
Neighborhood Lighting Project 
The Notice to Proceed date for the project is October 30, 2017.  The scope of work for the 
project includes the installation of 44 new street poles along with the replacement of 22 
existing street light fixtures with the latest L.E.D. fixtures in 5 neighborhood areas.  
 
2017 Street Rehabilitation and Maintenance Project 
The preconstruction meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 12, 2017. Material submittals 
for the project are presently under review.  
 
Corrugated Metal Storm Drain Pipe Assessment Study 
This project televises all City-maintained corrugated metal pipes (CMP) and assesses their 
condition to allow proactive and efficient pipe maintenance.  To date, approximately 45% of the 
CMP storm drains have been televised. Design for repair of the highest priority pipelines is 
underway. 
 
Private Development 
Pradera - Lennar Communities 
No changes from that reported last week. Phase 7 homes are being released for occupancy 
this week 
  
Lexington Model Homes - KB Homes 
Construction of surface improvement along Ash Street is continuing this week in anticipation of 
the first occupancies expected in October. Day time closures of Ash Street between Lehner 
Avenue and Vista Avenue have been extended until Friday, October 27, 2017. The work will 
be permitted between the 8:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. time period when school is in session. 
Electronic message boards have been placed prior to the closure and the developer and City 
will work closely with the Rincon Middle School representative.  
 



 

 10 

Citron Project by William Lyon Homes 
The project is idled this week. The project is located at 2516 S. Escondido Boulevard. 
 
Tract 932 - Canyon Grove Shea Homes Community 
Installation of additional concrete curb and gutter improvements along interior streets is being 
completed this week. Work on the installation and testing of water mains is ongoing this week. 
Four new homes were released for occupancy this week.      
 
Latitude II Condominiums by a Lyon Homes Partnership: Washington Avenue at Centre 
City Parkway 
The construction of offsite storm drain is continuing this week with work extending along 
Washington Avenue. On site testing of another segment of water main is being started this 
week. 
        
Veterans Village 
No changes from that reported last week: The project’s water improvement is continuing this 
week, with work being performed onsite.  
 
Tract 877 – Bernardo Ave. by Ambient Communities: 
Work is being performed on interior elements of the grading plan. Foundation are being poured 
in preparation of the start of framing.  
 
Victory Industrial Park 
The grading operation is continuing with the importing of material. The project is located at 
2005 Harmony Grove Road and is 5.4 acres in size.  
 
Centerpoint Project 
New offsite public improvements, which include concrete curb and gutter are being constructed 
along the project boundaries. The project is located at 999 Broadway. 
 
Spring Hill Suites Hotel/ La Terraza Boulevard 
The grading operation is continuing this week with the construction of the block wall along La 
Terraza Boulevard. Excavation of the footing for a new retaining wall along the rear of the 
property has begun. 
 
Centre City Parkway Shopping Center 
The project is idled at this time. The project is located at the corner of Mission Avenue and 
Centre City Parkway. 
 
Escondido Disposal Facility 
No changes from that reported last week: The onsite construction of storm drain and water 
quality basins is proceeding this week.  
 



 

 11 

FIRE 
Inspections: 
 

 

 
 

Total Emergency Responses (Year To Date) 12,699 

 
News: 

 Non-Safety Paramedics Justin Sandling and Darren Fitzpatrick were promoted to 
Firefighter Paramedic effective September 24th, 2017 and are currently attending the 2 
week, in-house Firefighter Paramedic Academy. Newly promoted Firefighter 
Paramedics learn and practice not only citizen rescue but also self and buddy 



 

 12 

rescue. Their day involves class time followed by hands on practice of similarly grouped 
skills.   

 
 

 Fire Prevention has scheduled their next smoke alarm installation event at Mountain 
Shadows Mobile Home Park on Wednesday, November 15, 2017. 

 

 The Escondido Fire Department and The Escondido Police Department competed in the 
Annual Grape Day Festival Chili Cook-Off at Grape Day Park on Saturday, October 7th. 
Fire Chief John Tenger and Police Chief Craig Carter along with department volunteers 
served up delicious bowls of chili to festival attendees. The Fire Department chili was 
deemed the best around and they were named the 2017 Chili Cook-Off Winner. 

  
 



 

 13 

POLICE 
 
INCIDENTS: 

 On 10/3/17 at 10:38 hours, officers responded to a robbery from the Starbucks at 320 
W. Valley Pkwy.  Loss was a bottle of tea from the store and a cell phone from a 
customer who began to video the incident.  The suspect was located and in custody by 
10:43 hours. 
 

 On 10/3/17 a victim was approached by two Hispanic Male Adults in the 1200 block of 
Auto Park Way. Suspect #1 grabbed the victim's purse from her shoulder as Suspect #2 
pointed a handgun at her. Suspects fled with the purse.  There were no injuries.   

 

 On 10/3/17 at 20:48 hours, an officer located a stolen vehicle in the area of El Norte 
Pkwy and Ash St.  The vehicle fled and a pursuit ensued. Officers pursued the vehicle 
to the area of I-15 and Deer Springs Rd with the assistance of ASTREA. The vehicle 
ultimately spun out on I-15 and came to a complete stop. There were two occupants in 
the vehicle. The occupants were taken into custody without further incident and charged 
with Auto Theft and Felony Fleeing. 

 

 On 10/3/17 at 22:07 hours, officers responded to the 700 block of E. 3rd Ave 
referencing an auto theft in progress. The two female juvenile suspects failed to drive 
the car away due to lack of knowing how to drive, and they fled on foot. Officers arrived 
on scene within a minute and detained the two suspects, who were positively identified 
by the reporting party. 

 

 On 10/4/17 at 15:00 hours, a 40 y/o Hispanic Male Adult, wearing a dark blue shirt and 
driving a white two door older modified street racer - type car, got out of the car at the 
intersection of Washington Av/Harding St and shot 1 round from a firearm at a green or 
gray 4-Runner or similar vehicle.  Witness believes the suspect targeted the wheel.  The 
suspect was last seen eastbound Washington Ave. and the victim was last seen 
northbound on Harding St.  No further details. 

 

 On 10/5/17 at 04:44 hours officers responded to Grand Ave/Fig St referencing a found 
toddler of approx. 2 years of age.  The child was not harmed and only wearing a 
diaper. Officers conducted a neighborhood sweep with negative results, bought the 
child an outfit to keep her warm, and brought her to the police department. The mother 
was finally located at around 09:00 hours and reunited with the child.  

 

 On 10/5/17 at about 21:45 hours, officers responded to the Albertson’s at 1509 E. 
Valley Parkway referencing theft suspects that were previously reported at the 
Albertson’s at 1570 W. Valley Parkway attempting to steal a shopping cart full of baby 
formula. Officers waited outside the front doors of the store, undetected, until the 
suspects exited the store and sounded the alarm. The suspects had placed over $1500 
worth of baby formula and other items in a shopping cart and exited the store. The adult 
suspects, one male and one female, were both from San Bernardino and left their 4-
year-old and 1-year-old daughters in the vehicle, alone, with the engine running, while 
they were committing the theft. The trunk of their vehicle was completely filled with baby 
formula and electronic items. Both were arrested for various felony theft charges and 
child endangerment. The children were released to their grandmother. 



 

 14 

 On 10/6/17 at 04:45 hours, officers responded to a residence in the 1200 block of S. 
Maple St. in reference to a male who was shot in the head. Upon arrival, officers located 
the victim who had a grazing bullet wound to his head. The victim stated he got into a 
disagreement with the residents at the house, and a male resident produced a firearm 
and shot him in the head. The suspect was located and arrested for Attempted Murder; 
the firearm was recovered. The injury to the victim was not life-threatening. 
 

 On 10/07/17 at 22:00 hours, officers responded to a robbery alarm at the AM/PM, 1550 
E. Grand Ave.  A Hispanic male suspect contacted the store clerk, produced a pistol 
and demanded cash.  The clerk complied with the suspect’s demands and he was not 
injured. The suspect fled the scene with an undisclosed sum of money.  Officers 
checked the area for the suspect with negative results. 
 

COPPS: 
The EPD COPPS (Community Oriented Policing and Problem-Solving) Unit is dedicated to 
increasing the quality of life for the residents of Escondido through pro-active responses to 
crime trends and community issues.  Addressing crime and public nuisance in Grape Day Park 
is one project the Unit has been tasked with, along with patrolling the Downtown Business 
District and surrounding areas.    

 15 arrests were made  

 23 citations were issued 

 COPPS Unit personnel came in at 0200 hours each day this week to check on locations 

that have been reported to be sleeping locations in the past.  Several arrests and cites 

were made as a result of this effort. 

EVENTS: 
The Neighborhood Transformation Project (NTP) returned to West Escondido this morning for 
the annual Neighborhood Clean-Up.  The Escondido Police Department partnered with City of 
Escondido Neighborhood Services Division and Public Works to remove large items of trash 
and trim several oversized trees that block street lighting at night.  A total of 10 oversized 
dumpsters were filled in just 4 hours!  
 
A very special thanks to Pastor Hector Morales and Emmanuel Faith Community Church 
(EFCC).  EFCC provided dozens of volunteers who helped load dumpsters at 4 locations, 
knock down weeds over 16 square blocks and clear the trash from the alleys.  We truly 
appreciate our community partnerships.  Thank you EFCC for giving so generously! 
 
(Photos below) 



 

 15 

             
 

      
 

### 


	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	#4 - CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN (CCP) FOR HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS FUNDS (HOME), COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS (CDBG), EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT FUNDS (ESG), AND THE ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING (AFH) -
	Attachment A
	R2017-128
	R2017-128 - Exhibit A


	CURRENT BUSINESS
	#5 - FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 -
	Attachment 1
	Budget Adjustment Request
	R2017-138

	#6 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE OPERATION OF THE ESCONDIDO PUBLIC LIBRARY -
	R2017-139
	R2017-139 - Exhibit A


	FUTURE AGENDA
	#7 - FUTURE AGENDA -

	CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT
	WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT




